
 

 

 

 
 

Notice of Joint Meeting and Agenda of 
Executive Committees of 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool and 
Public Agency Compensation Trust  

Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2019 
Time: 8:30 A.M.  

Place: at 201 S. Roop Street, Carson City, NV 89701 
 

Conference Call-In Phone No: 1-800-593-9034; Passcode: 150420 
 

https://poolpact.my.webex.com/poolpact.my/j.php?MTID=ma2eb72d5fa1799d08b3255e2abd0fa65 

Meeting number: 626 331 661     Password: PoolPact 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

Notices: 
1. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; 
2. Two or more items on the agenda may be combined for consideration 
3. Any item on the agenda may be removed or discussion may be delayed at any time 
4. The general Public Comment periods are limited to those items not listed on the agenda.  Public 
Comment periods are devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and may include discussion of 
those comments; however, no action make be taken upon a matter raised under Public Comments until 
the matter itself has been included specifically on an agenda as an item upon which action may be 
taken. Public Comments are Limited to Three Minutes per Person. 
5. At the discretion of the Chair of the meeting, public comments on specific agenda items may be 
allowed, but must be limited to the specific agenda item. 

 
1. Roll 

 
2. Public Comment 

 
3. For Possible Action:  Consent Agenda  

 
a. Approval of Minutes of Joint Meeting of February 19, 2019 

 
4. For Possible Action: Status update for the Formation of Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. and Approval of 

Final Grant for Submission to Boards 
 

5. For Possible Action: Acceptance of Report of Public Risk Mutual and Public Compensation Mutual 
Annual Audit 

 
 
 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 

Public Agency Compensation Trust 

201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102 

Carson City, NV 89701-4779 
Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665 

Telephone  (775) 885-7475 

Facsimile  (775) 883-7398  



 

 

 
6. For Possible Action: Review of NPAIP and PACT Program Renewal Status and Options  

a. Willis Pooling Report  
b. Review of Reinsurance Coverage and Retention for NPAIP and PACT 
c.  Renewal Reinsurance Strategies 

 
7. For Possible Action:  Review of Services and Approval of  

a. PACT Budget for 2019-2020 
b. NPAIP Budget for 2019-2020 

 
8. For Possible Action: Approval of Prospective Members of NPAIP and/or PACT 

a. White Pine County TV District #1  
 

9. For Possible Action: Review and Revise Drafts of April 16-17,2019 Annual Meeting Agendas 
Including: 

a.  Executive Committee and Officers Up for Election at the Annual  
 Meeting, Candidates and Conduct of the Elections 

b.  Draft Joint Board Agenda, NPAIP Board Agenda, PACT Board Agenda 
 

10.   Public Comment 
 

11.    For Possible Action: Adjournment 
 

This Agenda was posted at the following locations and linked to the Official State Website https://notice.nv.gov: 
 N.P.A.I.P.      Carson City Courthouse 
 201 S. Roop      885 E. Musser Street 
 Carson City, NV     89701    Carson City, NV     89701 
 
 Eureka County Courthouse    Churchill County Courthouse 
 10 S. Main Street     155 North Taylor Street 
 Eureka, NV    89316     Fallon, NV     89406 
 

 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are 
requested to notify the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool in writing at 201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson 
City, NV  89701-4790, or by calling (775) 885-7475 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 



 

 

 

 
 

Minutes of Joint Meeting of 
Executive Committees of 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool and 
Public Agency Compensation Trust  
Date: Tuesday, February 19, 2019 

Time: 8:30 A.M.  
Place: at 201 S. Roop Street, Carson City, NV 89701 

Conference Call-In Phone No: 1-800-593-9034; Passcode: 150420 
Webex Meeting number: 629 407 862 

Password: AyfMpMSM 
https://poolpact.my.webex.com/poolpact.my/j.php?MTID=m8393340469791cbff161a2ee0578f151 

 
 
1. Roll 

 
Members Present:  Josh Foli, Cindy Hixenbaugh, Mike Giles, Elizabeth Frances, Gerry Eick, Chris 

Mulkerns, Ann Cyr, Cash Minor, Dan Murphy 
Members Absent:  Bev Conley, Paul Johnson 
A quorum being present Vice Chair Josh Foli called the meeting to order.   

 
2. Public Comment 
 

Vice Chair Foli opened public comment and hearing none, closed the public comment period. 
 

3. For Possible Action:  Consent Agenda  
 
a. Approval of Minutes of Joint Meeting of November 5, 2018 

 
On motion and second to approve the consent agenda, the motion carried. 

 
4. For Possible Action: NEAM and SAA Investment Update 

 
Kelly Sullivan from NEAM provided a review of the investment portfolio for the pools and 
captives and responded to questions. Dan Smereck of SAA highlighted the investment 
strategies and introduced a possible additional investment instrument for bank loans for 
consideration as part of current investment policies. He responded to questions. As part of the 
discussion, Dan noted that the enterprise risk work being done by NEAM would help with 
analyzing whether to include bank loans as an option. Gerry Eick suggested that if it is included 
that some authorization range be considered in the strategy.  
 
Upon motion and second to accept the updates, the motion carried.   
 
 

 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 

Public Agency Compensation Trust 

201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102 

Carson City, NV 89701-4779 
Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665 

Telephone  (775) 885-7475 

Facsimile  (775) 883-7398  



 

 

5. For Possible Action: Status update for the Formation of Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc and 
Approval of Grant to Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. 
 
Alan Kalt reviewed the budget approved by the NRP board and explained various allocation 
options for funding the grant by the pools and captives. Wayne Carlson commented on the 
status of the formation documents noting that the Secretary of State filing remains pending 
final approval. He noted that the board approved the various documents and policy statements 
subject to legal counsel review. Mike Rebaleati requested an advance of $5,000 to establish a 
banking account by May 2019 so it is in place in advance of the July 1, 2019 grant period. 
Discussion ensued regarding the nature of the initial $500,000 funding of NRP and whether it 
should be considered a capital contribution or initial advance for cash flow.  
 
On motion and second to approve advancing $5,000 to establish a banking account, the motion 
carried. 
On motion and second to approve the proposed allocation of the grant budget as 35% POOL, 
45% PACT, 5% PRM, 15% PCM, the motion carried. 
On motion and second to approve the grant, the motion carried. 
  

6. For Possible Action: Status update regarding Public Risk Mutual and Public 
Compensation Mutual annual audit.  
 
Alan Kalt provided an update on the captives’ audits indicating that they were proceeding with 
an anticipated completion by mid-March for both audits. No action was deemed necessary. 

 
7. For Possible Action:  PRI Budget for 2019-2020 grant period 

 
Wayne Carlson explained that the PRI budget had been approved by the PRI board. He 
commented that this is the last year of the five-year grant. The slight budget deficit reflects 
several changes in staffing including an increase in the SEP contribution from 17% to 20% as 
planned. He noted that PRI maintains a net position equal to about one-year’s operations so 
can absorb the shortfall. 
 
On motion and second to accept the budget report, the motion carried. 

 
8. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Reports: 

a. Executive Director 
b. Chief Operations Officer  
c. Chief Financial Officer  
d. Risk Manager  
e. Human Resources Manager 
f. E-Learning/Web Master  
g. ASC – Claims Manager 

 
a. Wayne Carlson indicated that his report is considered a draft only due to many changes, 
particularly some legislation introduced recently that may substantially and adversely impact 
workers compensation costs. He highlighted some of the changes. 
b. Mike Rebaleati reviewed his written report and highlighted the cyber assessments, POOL 
Building repairs and another legislative item for volunteer firefighter deemed wages. Wayne 
Carlson commented that a recent case required combining deemed wages with wages from 
other employment for the purpose of calculating disability costs even when the employee is 
not disabled from the other employment. This will increase the impact of the proposed 
legislation. 



 

 

c. Alan Kalt provided an overview of his involvement with CRL on the investment and 
underwriting committees. He referred members to his written report. He emphasized a new 
initiative he termed a Risk Management Services Road Show concept whereby teams of staff 
scheduled regional orientation (similar to a health fair) with groups of members to review 
POOL/PACT services coupled with a training session on a specific topic of interest. He asked 
for feedback and received positive input. A pilot test program would be planned locally to 
refine the concept. 
d. Wayne Carlson reviewed the risk management activities on behalf of Marshal Smith. He 
highlighted the jail audits program underway and planned for all jails. Other programs were 
moving ahead as planned. 
e. Stacy Norbeck provided an update of the HR Strategic Plan, noting the popularity of some 
classes resulted in adding additional sessions. She noted the staff changes and activities. She 
mentioned the POOL/PACT 101 Webinar she and Marshall Smith presented.  
f. Mike Van Houten reviewed progress with the E-learning system utilization, course 
development and new projects that will replace some of the current BLR courses and safe 
costs. He noted development of a ticketing system to track resolution of user issues. 
g. Donna Squires and Margaret Malzahn highlighted recent changes in operations, staffing 
plans and claims activity. They commented on some large claims. Workers compensation 
claims costs are increasing with disability rating requirements. In addition, the proposed 
legislative changes will further impact costs. 
 
On motion and second to accept the reports, the motion carried.  

 
9. For Possible Action: Review of NPAIP and PACT Program Renewal Status and Options  

a. Willis Pooling Report  
b. Review of Reinsurance Coverage and Retention for NPAIP and PACT 
c.  Renewal Reinsurance Strategies 

 
a. Mary Wray provided an overview of the market noting that catastrophe losses have 
impacted the market pricing and underwriting strategies overall. Lloyds has tightened up its 
business operations controls which resulted in some syndicates’ capacity being reduced or 
withdrawn from certain lines of business.  
b. Mary Wray then reviewed the POOL and PACT program design quilts which show the 
various layers of retention and risk transfer for all participants on the programs. In addition, it 
shows the allocated premium per layer. She also reviewed the renewal pricing indications 
spreadsheet which compares the prior years rates using current year exposure bases to the 
renewal year indications. She highlighted the specific changes by reinsurer both in percentages 
and costs.  
c. Mary Wray discussed renewal reinsurance strategies for addressing potential increases, 
alternative retention and layering approaches and the effect on program costs.   

 
 

10. For Possible Action:  Review of Services and Approval of  
a. PACT Budget for 2019-2020 
b. NPAIP Budget for 2019-2020 

 
Alan Kalt summarized the proposed budgets and explained the proposed allocation of program 
costs between the pools and captives. He noted that the loss fund estimates were from the 
actuarial reports and that pricing for PRM was not yet received. He noted the estimated 
additional costs for building repairs to the POOL building. Reinsurance costs were based on 
conservative estimates. Risk Management grant dollars were reduced by $100,000 in order to 
fund jail audits as a special program. A change in approach was to have the captives pay to the 
pools a fixed dollar amount for certain risk management services rather than paying them 



 

 

directly, thus the revenue item to the pools. Regarding the options, he explained that option 1 
was based on current allocations; option 2 reflected the reallocation of services costs from 
direct payment by the captives to direct payment by the pools with the captives contributing to 
the revenue of the pools to encourage continuance of those services. He responded to 
questions. Some discussion ensued regarding how the payments from the captives to the pools 
should be characterized from an accounting and legal perspective and staff agreed to further 
evaluate this aspect. Under PACT option 2, allocated costs of the cardiac wellness program 
would be added into the rate for heart-lung increasing it by $1.00 to reflect that. In addition, 
the expansive legislative changes if approved will strain holding rates down in the future 
depending upon what gets passed. It was noted that entities should budget a 10% to 15% 
increase in program cost plus any known exposure changes.   
 
On motion and second to continue this item to the next Executive Committee meeting, the 
motion carried.  
 

11. For Possible Action: Approval of Prospective Members of NPAIP and/or PACT 
a. Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. 
b. Pooling Resources, Inc. 

 
Wayne Carlson commented that legal counsel indicated that due to the nature of the services 
provided by both organizations they would be eligible for membership in both programs. He 
referred to the underwriting sheets for detailed information.  
 
On motion and second to approve both organizations for membership in NPAIP and PACT, the 
motion carried.  

 
12. For Possible Action: Review and Revise Drafts of April 19-20,2018 Annual Meeting 

Agendas Including: 
a.  Executive Committee and Officers Up for Election at the Annual  

 Meeting, Candidates and Conduct of the Elections 
b. Draft Joint Board Agenda, NPAIP Board Agenda, PACT Board Agenda 
c. Proposed Amendments to POOL and PACT Interlocal Cooperation Agreements 

and Bylaws 
 

a. Wayne Carlson commented about the Executive Committee members up for election. Most 
incumbents indicated interest in continuing but some seats for small city/county members 
may open.  
b. Regarding the proposed agendas, they reflect a change to have everything take place within 
24 hours.  The first day be more than a training day in order to shorten the second day of the 
meeting to get done by noon. The training portion on the first day will focus on short, lively, 
fun activities to help members understand the services, not to be the formal reports. Formal 
reports would be written and approved under a consent agenda that day. The second day 
would begin with investment reports and a limited number of additional items before moving 
on to the NPAIP and PACT agendas with a goal of finishing by noon.  It was noted that 
members need to attend both days Members expressed appreciation of the changes. Members 
were encouraged to advise if additional items should be added. 
c. No proposed changes were discussed.  
 
On motion and second to approve, the motion carried. 

 
13. For Possible Action: Approval of POOL/PACT branding approach. 

 



 

 

Larry DiVincenzi provided an overview or the historical and proposed branding approach for 
POOL/PACT including logo colors, design, services distinctive marks, fonts and standardizing 
email signatures and written communication templates. He responded to questions.  
 
On motion and second to approve the approach and to consider legal protection of the color 
and content, the motion carried.  
 

14. For Possible Action:  Approval of the next Joint Executive Meeting.   
 
        No action taken, but a suggest date of April 8th or 9th was made.  

 
15. Public Comment 

 
        Chair Foli opened public comment and hearing none, closed the comment period. 

 
16.    For Possible Action: Adjournment 

 
           Chair Foli adjourned the meeting at about 1:15 p.m. 

 
The Agenda was posted at the following locations and linked to the Official State Website 
https://notice.nv.gov: 
 N.P.A.I.P.      Carson City Courthouse 
 201 S. Roop      885 E. Musser Street 
 Carson City, NV     89701    Carson City, NV     89701 
 
 Eureka County Courthouse    Churchill County Courthouse 
 10 S. Main Street     155 North Taylor Street 
 Eureka, NV    89316     Fallon, NV     89406 
 

 



 

 
Page 1 

 

NPAIP and PACT Grant Provisions, Terms and Conditions for  
Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. Administration Services 

 
Exhibit A Scope of Services  

.  
NEVADA RISK POOLING, INC., a Nevada nonprofit corporation, hereinafter called "NRP," will 
manage all administrative and risk management duties for Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 
(NPAIP aka POOL), Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT), Public Risk Mutual (PRM), 
Public Compensation Mutual (PCM), and any other agreements and obligations for the respective 
organizations, collectively known as POOL/PACT: 
  
 1. Execute all administrative and risk management functions of POOL, PACT, PCM, 

and PRM, et al in accordance with the terms of the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
that created the POOL/PACT.  

 
 2.  Manage the day-to-day operations of POOL/PACT as required to affect the purposes 

of POOL/PACT and as directed by POOL/PACT's Board of Directors. 
 
3. Conduct its functions for POOL/PACT from the POOL’s building located on 201 S. 

Roop St., Carson City, NV   89701 and to report to and maintain the files and records 
of POOL/PACT during the term of this Agreement. 

 
 5.    Consult with and advise the Board of Directors on matters affecting POOL/PACT 

operations. 
  
 6. Coordinate dealings with POOL/PACT operations service providers, including its 

service company and broker, its claims management firm, its attorneys, each 
member's local insurance agent, and POOL, PACT, PCM, and PRM, et al operations 
insurers and reinsurers. 

 
 7. Secure the statutory bond required by law to cover its functions as association 

administrator for PACT. 
  



 

 

 
Page 2 

 

 8. Assist POOL/PACT with compliance with applicable State of Nevada laws and 
regulations pertaining to POOL/PACT operations in the capacity as association 
administrator.  

 
 9. At no time during the term of this Agreement or for a period of one year immediately 

following the termination of this Agreement will NRP engage in the provision of any 
of the services set forth in this Agreement in a manner which competes with 
POOL/PACT and the services provided to POOL/PACT by its current service 
providers. NRP further agrees it will not directly or indirectly, solicit or attempt to 
solicit business or patronage of any public entity in Nevada that is a member of 
POOL/PACT for the purpose of selling pooling, association risk sharing of similar 
insurance products or providing similar services. 

  
 10. NRP agrees all records resulting from services under this Grant and held by NRP 

on behalf of POOL/PACT shall be maintained and preserved in accordance with 
the provision of NRS 239.005 et seq. and shall remain the property of POOL/PACT 
at all times and will be surrendered to POOL/PACT upon termination or expiration 
of this Grant. NRP shall be permitted to copy, at its own expense, such portions of 
the files as may be necessary. 

  

 11. Conflicts of Interest.  NRP shall conform to Nevada laws regarding ethics and 

conflicts of interest and shall disclose any conflicts of interest. 

 
 12. NRP will indemnify, defend and hold harmless POOL/PACT with respect to any 

claims asserted as a result of any errors, omissions, torts, intentional torts or other 

negligence on the part of NRP and/or its employees unless the complained of 

actions of NRP were taken at the specific direction of POOL/PACT.  

 



POOL/PACT Grant Provisions, Terms and Conditions for  
Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. Administration Services 

 
 
Grant No.: P/P 2019 Administration Services 
Effective Date: July 1, 2019 
 
Grantor: Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool and 
  Public Agency Compensation Trust 

 201 S. Roop St., Suite 102  
Carson City, NV  89701 

 
Grantee: Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc.  

             201 S. Roop St., Suite 102  
Carson City, NV  89701 

 
 

Total Grant Amount:  

 
GRANT SCHEDULE 
 
1. Purpose: The purpose of this Grant is to provide administrating and professional services to manage 

the day-to-day operations and to carry out those duties required to manage the Nevada Public Agency 
Insurance Pool (NPAIP), Public Agency Compensation Trust PACT), Public Compensation Mutual 
(PCM), Public Risk Mutual (PRM), collectively referred to as POOL/PACT, consistent with any 
Bylaws, and amendments thereto. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPAIP) hereinafter 
will be referred to as POOL. This effort shall be carried out generally as set forth in the Grantee’s 
proposed services stated in Exhibit A “Services to be Provided” attached to this document. 

 
2. Requirements: This Grant is subject to the laws and regulations of the State of Nevada. If any 

statute expressly prescribes policies or specific requirements that differ from the 
requirements, standards, provisions, or terms and conditions of this Grant, the provisions of 
the statute shall govern. 

 
3. Order of Precedence.  Any inconsistency or conflict in the terms and conditions specified in 

this Grant shall be resolved according to the following order of precedence: 
The Grant Schedule 
These Terms and Conditions 

 
4. Term: The term of this Grant commences on July 1, 2019 and continues through Sixty (60) months 

(June 30, 2024) thereafter unless extended by mutual agreement or terminated as provided in Section 
30.   

 
5. Terms and Conditions: This Grant is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this document 

and any terms stated in Exhibit “A” and any special terms and conditions in this Grant Schedule. 
 
6. The Granting authority will be the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (aka POOL) and the Public 

Agency Compensation Trust (PACT) 
 

 



7. Grants Officer’s Representative: The Grants Officer’s Representatives (GOR) representing 
POOL/PACT under this Grant are the respective Chairs of POOL and PACT. 

 
8. Administrative Grants Office (AGO): The Administrative Grants Office for this Grant is the NRP 

administrative office, 201 S. Roop St., Suite 102, Carson City, NV  89701-4790, Phone: (775) 885-
7475. 

 
9. Grantor Responsibility:  The Grantor has responsibility to cooperate with NRP in the 

establishment and funding of POOL/PACT.  Grantor has the responsibility to: 
a. To consult with and provide direction to NRP administrative staff.to establish 
funds for payment of claims and other obligations of POOL/PACT  and to authorize 
NRP to be manager of the funds and to expend those funds for legal and financial 
obligations of POOL/PACT. 
b. To establish Bylaws, policies and procedures to govern the operation of 
POOL/PACT. 
c. To appoint legal counsel to advise POOL/PACT and its Executive Director 
with respect to matters affecting the operation of the POOL/PACT. 
d. To establish POOL/PACT office location from which NRP will conduct 
POOL/PACT operations and to fund the expenses thereof. 
e. To indemnify, defend and hold harmless NRP with respect to any claims 
asserted as a result of any errors, omissions, torts, intentional torts or other 
negligence on the part of POOL/PACT and/or its employees unless the complained 
of actions of POOL/PACT were taken at the specific direction of NRP. 

 
 

10. Grantee Responsibility:  The Grantee has full responsibility for the services and activity 
supported by this Grant, in accordance with the Grantee's proposal (Exhibit A), and the terms 
and conditions specified in this Grant. Grantees are encouraged to suggest or propose to 
discontinue or modify unpromising services or to explore alternatives which may appear 
during the grant. However, they must consult the Grants Officer’s Representative (GOR) 
through the Administrative Grants Office (AGO) before significantly deviating from the 
objectives or overall program originally proposed.  The Grantee shall immediately notify the 
Grants Officer of developments that have a significant impact on the award-supported 
activities. Also, notification shall be given in the case of problems, delays, or adverse 
conditions which materially impair the ability to meet the objectives of the award. This 
notification shall include a statement of the action taken or contemplated, and any assistance 
needed to resolve the situation.   

 
11. Amendment of Grant: The only method by which this Grant can be amended is by a 

formal, written amendment signed by either the Grants Officer or the AGO. No other 
communications, whether oral or in writing, are valid. 

 
12. Grant Funding: This Grant is funded equal monthly installments payable at the end of each month 

following completion of services. Grantor’s obligation to make payments to the Grantee is limited to 
only those funds obligated by this Grant or by modification to this Grant. Subject to availability of 
funds and continued satisfactory progress on the Grant as determined by Grantor.  Grantor agrees to 
provide funding according to the following estimated schedule: 

 



 
 
FY 2019-2020:  $1,500,000  
FY 2020-2021:  $1,553,000 
FY 2021-2022:  $1,607,000 
FY 2022-2023:  $1,663,000 
FY 2023-2024:  $1,721,000 
 
The Grantee shall notify the GOR in writing promptly whenever the total Grant amount is expected to 
exceed the needs of the Grantee for the project period by more than $100,000 or 5%, whichever is 
greater.  
 

13. Payments:  Advance Payment Method. Upon acceptance of the terms and conditions of this 
Grant by the Grantee to the AGO, the Grantee shall receive $500,000 as start-up capital. 
Subsequent monthly payments will be made automatically at the end of each month after 
services are performed based on the annual grant amount.   
 

14. Standards for Financial Management Systems: The Grantee’s financial management 
system shall comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for non-profit 
organizations. 
 

15.  Administration and Cost Principles: Applicable to this Grant are the following 
requirements:  

 
Prior Approvals: 
All prior approvals are waived hereby except for the following: 

a. Extension of the expiration period of this Grant. 
  b. The need for additional funding. 
 

Pre-award Costs: 
a. Grantees may incur pre-award costs of up to thirty (30) days prior to the effective date 
of the Grant award. 
b. Pre-award costs as incurred by the Grantee must be necessary for the effective and 
economical conduct of the project and the costs must be otherwise allowable in 
accordance with the appropriate cost principles. 
c. Any pre-award costs are made at the Grantee's risk. The incurring of pre-award costs 
by the Grantee does not impose any obligation on the Grantor, in the absence of 
appropriations, if an award is not subsequently made or if an award is made for a lesser 
amount than the Grantee expected. 

 
Audit and Access to Records: The Grantee and its sub recipients shall be subject to audit 
requirements for nonprofit organizations per Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
The GOR shall have direct access to records and information of the Grantee to ensure full 
accountability for grant funds.  
 

16. Grant Oversight:  The POOL/PACT Executive Committees will oversee compliance with the terms 
of the grant and will monitor services delivery, scope and quality and recommend any changes to 
POOL/PACT. 
 

17. Audit Requirements:  As a condition of this grant, all funds shall be audited annually by a qualified 



independent certified public accountant who shall report financial results and management 
recommendations to Grantor. 
 

18. Unexpended Grant Funds:  Any funds not expended for the purposes set forth in this Grant shall be 
subject to refund to Grantor, unless otherwise directed by Grantor.  Grantor may allow retention of 
unexpended funds for carryover to future grants, expansion or redirection of services or service 
delivery methods or for any other purpose deemed appropriate by Grantor. 
 

19. Relationship of Grantor and Grantee:  Nothing in this grant shall be construed to create an 
employee-employer relationship between Grantor and Grantee.  Grantee shall always be considered 
an independent contractor.  Grantee agrees to keep Grantor informed about the services it provides on 
a regular basis in the form of reports to Grantor.  Considering Grantee’s status as an independent 
contractor, Grantee acknowledges and agrees that Grantor is not responsible for obtaining and 
maintaining workers compensation insurance.  In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 616A 
through 616D and 617 of the Nevada Revised Statues and Chapters 616 and 617 of the Nevada 
Administrative Code, Grantee agrees to provide Grantor a proper certificate certifying that it has 
obtained workers compensation insurance covering Grantee during the term of this grant.  Grantee 
agrees to pay all premiums necessary to keep said workers’ compensation insurance effective through 
the term of this grant.  
 
Grantor shall not be responsible for any of Grantee’s payroll, employee benefits, taxes, licenses, 
attorney’s fees or expense for Grantee’s activities not related to the services performed pursuant to 
this grant. 
 

20. Insurance Requirements:  Grantee has the option to acquire workers compensation, property and 
casualty insurance from the POOL/PACT or maintain general liability, auto liability and errors or 
omissions insurance in an amount of at least $1,000,000 each claim or occurrence and workers 
compensation insurance as required by law from a different provider.  Certificates evidencing such 
coverage shall be provided to the GOR for each grant year. 
   

21. Mutual Indemnification and Hold Harmless:  Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Grantor with respect to any claims asserted because of any errors, omissions, torts, 
intentional torts or other negligence unless the complained of actions were taken at the specific 
direction of Grantor.  Grantor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Grantee with respect to 
any claims asserted because of any errors, omissions, torts, intentional torts or other negligence unless 
the complained of actions were taken at the specific direction of Grantee.   
 

22. Cooperation with Legal Counsel:  Grantee agrees to cooperate with Grantor’s legal counsel for 
Grantor’s members in matters affecting such members.  
 

23. Cooperation with Grantor’s Executive Committees:  Grantee agrees to cooperate with the 
Grantor’s Executive Committees regarding provision of the services required in the grant or any 
modifications made to the grant regarding such services. Grantor’s Executive Committees agree to 
cooperate with Grantee. 
 

24. Records:  Grantee agrees that all records resulting from services under this grant and held by Grantee 
on behalf of Grantor shall be maintained and preserved in accordance with the provisions of NRS 
239.005 et seq. and shall always remain the property of Grantor and will be surrendered to Grantor 
upon termination or expiration of this grant.  Grantee shall be permitted to copy, at its own expense, 
such portions of the records as may be necessary. 
 

25. Conflicts of Interest:  Grantee shall conform to Nevada laws regarding ethics and conflicts of 
interest and shall disclose any conflicts of interest.  



 
26. Restrictions on Grantee:  Without prior concurrence by Grantor’s Executive Committees and its 

Grants Officers, Grantee may not perform services to individual members of Grantor on a fee for 
service or grant basis. 

 
27. Reports and Reports Distribution:  Reports shall be furnished as specified below:  

 
(1) Quarterly Status Report - This report, due 30 days after the reporting period, shall keep 
the Grantor informed of Grantee activity and progress toward accomplishment of Grant 
objectives. 
 
(2) Quarterly Financial Report – This report, due 30 days after the reporting period, shall 
including exhibits showing the financial standing of the Grantee, budget to actual income 
statements and other income and expense reports as necessary.  
 
(3) Annual Audit – this report due 150 days after completion of each fiscal year of the Grant, 
shall be submitted by the independent auditor who shall be a certified public accountant. 
 

28. Custody and Disbursements. NRP shall oversee the custody of and disbursement of all 
assigned funds but may delegate that disbursing authority as may be authorized by the Board, 
subject to the requirements of below. 
28.1. Maintenance and Safekeeping. NRP shall assure the following activities are 

carried out appropriately: 
28.1.1. Receive and acknowledge receipt for all funds of POOL/PACT  and deposit them 

in the proper treasury; 
28.1.2. Be responsible for the safekeeping and disbursement of all POOL/PACT  

 funds; 
28.1.3. Pay any sums due from POOL/PACT  as approved by the Board or by anybody or 
person to whom the Board has delegated approval authority; 
28.1.4. Verify and report in writing to the Executive Committee or the Board of 

POOL/PACT, as of the first day of each quarter of the Fiscal Year, the amount of 
money held for POOL/PACT, the amount of receipts since the last such report, and 
the amount paid out since that report;  

28.1.5. Invest monies in accordance with applicable laws and regulations governing non-
profit investments. 
 

29. Property.  All personal property, which includes all technology related items, will remain 
the property the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool.   
 

30. Risk Management Services. NRP will provide risk management and insurance 
consulting services to members.  These services will include but not limited to loss 
prevention, review of loss data, promotion and evaluation of loss prevention programs, and 
reports to members. The details of these services, such as assistance to members in the 
development and implementation of risk management policies, identification and evaluation 
of risk and Loss potentials, recommendations as to affirmative steps in order to avoid or 
reduce risks and losses, development of a system of claims reporting and on the scene 
investigation by member’s personnel; and development and production of risk prevention 
educational programs for member’s personnel will be reviewed and approved by all 
POOL/PACT Boards of Directors annually. 



 
31. Termination and Enforcement:   

 
a. Termination. This Grant may be terminated, in whole or in part, by the Grantor upon 90-day 
notice if the Grantee materially fails to comply with these terms and conditions or with the 
consent of the Grantee. The Grantee may terminate the Grant upon sending 180 days written 
notification to the Grants Officer. 
 
b. Enforcement. If the Grantee fails to materially comply with these terms and conditions, the 
Grants Officer may impose special or take the appropriate action to initiate termination 
proceedings by Grantor. 
 

32. Disputes, Claims, and Appeals: 
 
a. Disputes and Claims. The Grantee may submit a claim arising out of or relating to the 
Grant by submitting the claim in writing to the Grants Officer for decision. The written 
submission must specify the nature and basis for the relief requested and include all data that 
supports the claim. Within 60 calendar days, the Grants Officer shall either prepare a written 
decision or notify the Grantee of a specific date when a decision will be rendered. The 
decision of the Grants Officer shall be final unless the Grantee decides to appeal. 

 
b. Appeals. The Grantee may appeal the Grants Officer decision by filing a written notice of 
appeal to the Grantor and the Grants Officer within 30 days of receiving the decision. The 
Grantor shall decide the appeal based solely on the written record unless the Grantor decides 
to conduct a fact-finding procedure or an oral hearing on the appeal. 

 
33. Acknowledgment of Sponsorship:  The Grantee agrees that in the release of information 

relating to this Grant, such release shall include a statement to the effect that the project or 
effort depicted was or is sponsored by the Grantor. For the purpose of this article, 
information includes news releases, articles, manuscripts, brochures, advertisements, still and 
motion pictures, symposia, etc. 

 
 
Grantor Acceptance of Grant    Grantee Acceptance of Grant 
 
 
 
__________________     ___________________ 
Cash Minor       Wayne Carlson 
Chair       Executive Director 
Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool   Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc. 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Paul Johnson 
Chair 
Public Agency Compensation Trust 



PCM CAPTIVE AUDIT OVERVIEW Year Ending December 31, 2018

Public
Compensation
Mutual



KEY SECTIONS 
OF THE AUDIT 
REPORT

President’s Letter

Management Discussion and Analysis

Independent Auditors Report

Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheets

Statements of Income & Comprehensive Income

Statements of Changes in Surplus

Statements of Cash Flows

Compliance Section

Report on Internal Controls and NAC 694C.210



KEY PLAYERS

Wayne Carlson, Executive Director POOL/PACT
Mike Rebaleati, Captive President, COO
Alan Kalt, CFO
Deb Connally, Controller
Cash Minor, Chair PRM, Director PCM
Paul Johnson, Chair PCM, Director PRM
Josh Foli, Director, Audit Committee Member
Gerry Eick, Vice Chair PCM, , Audit Committee
Niki Neilon:  Casey, Neilon & Associates:  Audit Firm
Steve Balkenbush, General Counsel
Willis Towers Watson, Brokers
Derek Burkhalter, Actuary



PUBLIC 
COMPENSATION 
MUTUAL



PUBLIC 
COMPENSATION 
MUTUAL



PUBLIC 
COMPENSATION 
MUTUAL

Total Capital Contributions From PCM  $53,700,939

Investment Balance at 12-31-2018   $72,834,863

Reserves for losses and loss adjustments $  4,549,000

Net Investment Income for 2018 $  2,138,929

Unrealized Gains (losses) on investments ($ 3,353,577)

Surplus Balance at 12-31-2018 $68,700,090

See detailed financial statements and notes for more 
details.



PUBLIC 
COMPENSATION 
MUTUAL

KEY FINANCIAL 
BENCHMARKS

Five Year Benchmark Data 2014-2018

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total Assets/Total Liabilities
Ratio 15.0 13.0 12.0 18.1 13.8

Change In Net Surplus

Ratio 4.2% 3.3% 8.3% 75.8% -1.5%

Reserve Leverage (Claims Reserves/Total Surplus)

Ratio 5.5% 6.7% 7.5% 4.4% 6.6%

Loss Ratios (Losses/Premiums)

Ratio 76.1% 42.7% 41.6% 7.7% 82.9%

Expense Ratio (Total Expenses/Premiums)

Ratio 7.0% 5.6% 5.5% 4.3% 9.8%



QUESTIONS & ANSWERS Thanks for your support!



PRM CAPTIVE AUDIT OVERVIEW Year Ending December 31, 2018



KEY SECTIONS 
OF THE AUDIT 
REPORT

President’s Letter

Management Discussion and Analysis

Independent Auditors Report

Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheets

Statements of Income & Comprehensive Income

Statements of Changes in Surplus

Statements of Cash Flows

Compliance Section

Report on Internal Controls and NAC 694C.210



KEY PLAYERS

Wayne Carlson, Executive Director POOL/PACT
Mike Rebaleati, Captive President, COO
Alan Kalt, CFO
Deb Connally, Controller
Cash Minor, Chair PRM, Director PCM
Paul Johnson, Chair PCM, Director PRM
Josh Foli, Director, Audit Committee Member
Gerry Eick, Vice Chair PCM, , Audit Committee
Niki Neilon:  Casey, Neilon & Associates:  Audit Firm
Steve Balkenbush, General Counsel
Willis Towers Watson, Brokers
Derek Burkhalter, Actuary



PUBLIC RISK 
MUTUAL



PUBLIC RISK 
MUTUAL



PUBLIC RISK 
MUTUAL

KEY FINANCIAL 
FIGURES

Total Capital Contributions From POOL  $29,477,263

Investment Balance at 12-31-2018   $40,914,152

Reserves for losses and loss adjustments $  3,591,000

Net Investment Income for 2018 $  1,266,846

Unrealized Gains (losses) on investments ($ 2,165,741)

Membership Services Expense (Cyber) $     412,238

Surplus Balance at 12-31-2018 $37,209,743

See detailed financial statements and notes for more details.



PUBLIC RISK 
MUTUAL

KEY FINANCIAL 
BENCHMARKS

Five Year Benchmark Data 2014-2018

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total Assets/Total Liabilities
Ratio 15.1 13.3 12.6 13.6 9.9

Change In Net Surplus

Ratio 11.7% 5.5% 9.0% 39.9% -5.8%

Reserve Leverage (Claims Reserves/Total Surplus)

Ratio 1.9% 1.8% 6.8% 6.3% 9.7%

Loss Ratios (Losses/Premiums)

Ratio -162.7% 48.8% 49.4% 171.4% 175.8%

Expense Ratio (Total Expenses/Premiums)

Ratio 10.3% 8.0% 7.5% 31.5% 46.4%

Surplus to Retention Ratio (Surplus/Blended Retentions)
10.3 13.9 13.9



QUESTIONS & ANSWERS Thanks for your support!



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 



 

 

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 PAGE NO. 
 
PRESIDENT’S LETTER 1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 2-8 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 9-10 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
    Balance Sheets 11 
    Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 12 
    Statements of Changes in Surplus 13 
    Statements of Cash Flows 14 
    Notes to Financial Statements                                                                                                                15-26 
 
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
  Report on Internal Control and Compliance over Financial Reporting Based on 
    an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  
       with Nevada Administrative Code 694C.210                                                                                                          27



 

1 
 

President’s Letter 

Public Compensation Mutual (PCM) had a significant year in 2018 that reflects its strength despite some 

major claims: 

❖  PCM is a pure captive of the Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT). There was no additional 

surplus contribution in 2018 so PACT’s surplus contribution total of $53,700,939 remains unchanged. 

 PCM continued to provide $700,000 excess of PACT's $300,000 retention and 25% quota share 

of $2,000,000 excess of the first $1,000,000 for worker's compensation coverage. In the aggregate for 

all ceding entity losses, $1,500,000 part of $3,000,000 annually, to attach (a) once any other annual 

aggregate excess/reinsurance coverage obtained by the ceding entity has been exhausted or, (b) at an 

annual retention of $10,000,000 in the aggregate, whichever is greater.  This coverage helped PACT 

absorb the major claims that occurred in 2018 while maintaining financial stability. 

❖  With the assistance of New England Asset management (Fixed Income Manager) and Strategic 

Asset Alliance (Investment Advisor), investment earnings grew to $2,138,929 compared to $1,826,118 in 

2017. The investment base in 2018 was $72,834,863 compared to $73,263,384 in 2017.  This investment 

income is key to the Risk Management and claim coverage for the PACT and PCM.  PCM’s investment 

portfolio includes U.S. government obligations, U.S. state and local bonds, U.S. corporate bonds, fixed 

income mutual funds, bond mutual funds and equity mutual funds. 

 PCM's reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses increased to $4,549,000 in 2018 from 

$3,082,000 in 2017. These reserves are based on a 75% confidence level.  This increase in actual losses 

and loss adjustment expenses of $123,000 in 2017 to $1,467,002 in 2018.  The actual losses and loss 

adjustment expenses increased by $590,002 from $123,000 in 2017 to $1,467,002 in 2018.  The increase 

was primarily due to the adverse development of current year losses related to losses related to workers 

compensation business in 2018.  PCM incurred losses related to 2018, as determined by the 

independent actuary, were $2,102,000 offset by a reduction in prior years losses of ($635,000) as 

indicated in note 6 of the financial report.  This type of volatility is expected when dealing with workers 

compensation claims.    

❖  PCM's total surplus as of December 31, 2017 was $69,772,827 compared to $68,700,090 as of 

December 31, 2018.   

One of PCM's goals is to continue to increase investment earnings while providing PACT added value to 

workers compensation coverage. This has been instrumental when PCM is seeking reinsurance and 

excess quotes from its reinsurance partners.  

Building financial strength and security is a long‐held value of PACT and PCM. Under the Board's 

direction and leadership, we continue to work toward achieving those goals.  

I personally want to thank the board of trustees for PACT and the PCM Captive board of trustees for 

their commitment to the dynamic development of the coverages and risk management products that 

we support. 

Best, 

Michael Rebaleati 

PCM President 



 

2 
 

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 
Public Compensation Mutual’s (PCM) discussion and analysis is designed to, (a) assist the reader in 
focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the entity’s financial activities, (c) 
identify changes in the Company’s financial position (its ability to address next and subsequent years 
challenges), and (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan.  
 
We encourage readers to read this information in conjunction with the President’s letter, financial 
statements and notes to gain a more complete understanding of the information presented.  
 
Company Overview 
Public Compensation Mutual (“the Company”), a Nevada nonprofit pure captive mutual insurer formed 
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 694C, is engaged in the business of providing reinsurance for the 
Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT).  Effective July 18, 2013, the Company became a pure captive 
authorized by the State of Nevada Division of Insurance, prior to that date, the Company was an 
association captive. Currently, the Company issues a single reinsurance policy to PACT each year and the 
underlying PACT program in turn issues a single certificate of participation to the members with a copy 
of the PACT Coverage Form to each member.  
 
Financial Highlights 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, including the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
The auditor’s report offers an unmodified opinion on the financial statements, the best opinion that can 
be attained.  
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of income and expenses during the accounting period.  Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 
 
PCM has identified the estimates inherent in the valuation of investments and loss reserves (including 
reserves for incurred but not reported claims‐ IBNR) as critical in that they involve a higher degree of 
judgment and are subject to a significant degree of variability.  In developing these estimates, 
management makes subjective and complex judgements that are inherently uncertain and subject to 
material change as facts and circumstances develop.  Although variability is inherent in these estimates, 
management believes the amounts provided are appropriate and conservative based upon the facts 
available as of the date of the financial statements. PCM uses the assistance of an independent outside 
actuarial firm in relation to the IBNR and overall loss reserve adequacy. 
 
Investments 
One significant estimate inherent in the valuation of investments is the evaluation of fair value and 
other than temporary impairment (OTTI).  Fair value requires management judgement on the 



 

3 
 

appropriate classes of assets and liabilities for which disclosures about fair value measurement should 
be provided.  Fair value for investments is primarily a quantitative assessment.  For debt and equity 
securities, class is determined on the basis, nature and risk of the investments.  A full disclosure of 
PCM’s fair value methodology can be found in Note 3 Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Notes to 
the Audited Financial Statements. 
 
The determination of OTTI is a quantitative and qualitative process, which is subject to judgment in the 
determination of whether declines in the fair value of investments are other than temporary.  The cost 
basis of fixed maturity investments is adjusted for impairments in value, deemed to be other than 
temporary, with the associated realized loss reported in net income.  Factors considered in evaluating 
whether a decline in value is other than temporary include: 1) the magnitude of the decline in value; 2) 
current economic conditions and the financial condition and near‐term prospects of the issuer; 3) the 
amount of time that the fair value has been less than cost; and 4) the estimated period over which the 
security is expected to recover and whether PCM’s cash or working capital requirements and contractual 
or regulatory requirements may indicate a need to sell the security before its forecasted recovery.  
 
Cash and investments of $73,690,461 are available to meet current liabilities, including reserves for loss 
and loss adjustment expenses of $5,383,300. Total liabilities include accounts payable, reserves for loss 
and loss adjustment expenses and unearned assessments. This is a conservative measure of cash and 
investments available to pay current obligations.  PCM’s cash ratio is 13.7, meaning that the it has 13.7 
times the unrestricted cash and investments on hand to meet its obligations.  Last year’s cash ratio was 
18.0.   
 
Investment balances as of December 31, 2018 were $72,834,863 compared to the prior year amount of 
$73,263,348.  This represents a decrease of $428,485 or 0.6%. The decrease is due primarily to the sale 
of investments during the year to pay claims. As noted in Note 3, Level 1 quoted price in active market 
for identical assets were valued at $20,009,610 the Level 2 significant other observable inputs at 
$53,680,851 and no Level 3 assets.  The following is an overview of the fair value investments: 
 

 
 
 
As noted in Note 5‐ Investments, the contractual maturities of available‐for‐sale debt securities at 
December 31st 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Fair Values of Investments

Cash & Equivalents US Gov't Obligations US & State Obligations

International Bonds US Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Mutual Funds

Bond Mutual Funds Equity Mutual Funds



 

4 
 

            Estimated Fair Values 
                  2018    2017 
1 year or less        $     197,196    $           ‐ 
Due in 1 – 5 years        15,797,000      13,328,183 
Due in 5 ‐10 years        17,857,716      18,259,041 
Due in 10 years or more       19,828,939      21,214,935 
  Total Investment in debt securities  $53,680,851    $52,802,159 
 

 
 
 
Investment Income Receivable 
The investment income receivable at December 31, 2018 is $318,679 compared to $285,885 in 2017.  
This is a change of $32,794 or 11.5%.  This is due primarily to the timing of the payment of accrued 
interest on the investments. 
 
Loss Reserves 
Loss reserves are estimates of losses and loss development and as such will differ from the ultimate 
results.  Therefore, one of the critical accounting estimates is the proper amount of reserves to be set 
aside to meet net future liabilities of the current in‐force business.  Changes in or deviations from the 
assumptions used to develop the loss reserves can significantly affect PCM’s reserve levels and related 
future operations.  Assumptions include company methodology for underwriting and claims handling 
and current estimates of the legal, inflation rate, and social environments.   Annually, PCM retains an 
outside independent actuary to provide a loss reserve opinion and establish a range for PCM’s loss 
reserves.  PCM’s policy is to book reserves at the 75% confidence level as recommended by the actuary.  
Management has elected not to discount the reserves for anticipated investment income.  See Note 6‐
Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense note in the financial statements.   
 
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses increased from $3,082,000 to $4,549,000 at December 
31, 2018 an increase of $1,467,000 or 47.6% during the year due to case reserve increases on a couple 
of severe loss claims incurred during the year.   
 
Unearned Premiums 
PCM writes only 12‐month insurance policies effective July 1st the year written, so all of the $803,500 
unearned premiums carried in 2018 will be fully earned in 2019.   
 

Maturities: 2018

1 yr or less Due in 1 ‐5 years Due in 5 ‐10 years Due in 10 or more



 

5 
 

Surplus Contributions 
There were no surplus contributions from PACT during 2018. Surplus contributions during 2017 were 
$25,000,000 as approved by the Board at their meeting held on March 22, 2017 meeting.  This compares 
to the surplus contribution of $1,093,260 approved on March 21, 2016. This brings the total surplus 
contribution into PCM at $53,700,939.  See Note 6 for more details.  The following chart indicates 
PACT’s surplus contributions to PCM 
 
 

 
 
Surplus 
PCM’s total surplus at December 31, 2018 was $68,700,090 a decrease of $1,072,737 from the 
December 31, 2017 balance of $69,772,827.  The decrease results from net income of $2,268,306 offset  
with accumulated other comprehensive loss of $3,341,043 during the year.   
  
The following is the comparative Balance Sheet of Public Compensation Mutual as of December 31, 
2018 and 2017. 

 ‐

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

PACT Contributions

PACT Contributions



 

6 
 

 

 
 
Net Income from Operations 
PCM reported net income from operations for the year ended December 2018 of $2,268,306 a decrease 
of $955,647 from the prior year end income of $3,223,953.  The decrease is primarily driven by an 
increase in investment income of $312,811 offset by underwriting gains (premiums less expenses) of 
$129,377 compared to prior year underwriting gains of $1,397,835.  The significant reduction in the 
underwriting gains is due to the increase in the loss and loss adjustment expenses during the year.  See 
further explanation below.   
 
Net Earned Premiums 
Net earned premiums of $1,769,208 increased by $180,468 or 11.4% from $1,588,740 at December 31, 
2017.  This increase in 2018 due to higher coverage limits going to $700,000 excess of $300,000 in Fiscal 
Year 7‐1‐2017 to 6‐30‐2018 compared to $500,000 excess of $500,000 in Fiscal Year 7‐1‐2016 to 6‐30‐
2017 as well as higher assessment based on claims experience. 
 
Investment Income Including Realized Gains 
Investment income of $2,138,929, including realized gains and (losses) on investments of ($12,534), at 
December 31, 2018 was $312,811 or 17.1% more than the same period during 2017.  The increase was 
primarily due to the higher investment balance, higher investment book yields and realized losses from 
the sale of securities during the year. See Note 5 Investments for greater details. 
 
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses increased by $1,344,002 from $123,000 in 2017 to $1,467,002 in 



 

7 
 

2018.  The increase was primarily due to the occurrence of the adverse development of current year 
losses related to liability business which had been experienced in 2018.  PCM incurred losses related to 
2018, as determined by the actuary, were $2,102,000 offset by a reduction in prior years losses of 
($635,000).  See Note 6 Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses for more details. 
 
Administrative Fees  
Administrative fees were $172,829 and $67,905 respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018 
and 2017.  The increase was attributed primarily to increases in the contract amounts for the PARMS 
management as two additional employees were hired during 2018 and a risk management contract with 
Target Solutions.  The Target Solutions contact is a member service agreement to assist Police and Fire 
Employees reduce possible worker compensation claims.  
     
Other Comprehensive Income 
Other comprehensive income, which consist of unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities 
arising during the period less reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses recognized in net income.  In 
2018 the unrealized loss on available for sale securities during the period was ($3,353,577) compared to 
unrealized gains of $2,237,124 in 2017. The unrealized loss is due primarily to the increases in the 
interest rates imposed by the Federal Reserve during 2018.  The reclassification adjustment for (gains) 
losses recognized in net income were $12,534 in 2018 compared to ($381,914) in 2017.  This results in 
total Other Comprehensive loss of ($3,341,043) in 2018 and compared to Other Comprehensive Income 
$1,855,210 in 2017.  As noted in board policy, investments are intended to be held for maturity, thus the 
unrealized gains (losses) are not likely to materialize.      
 
The following is the Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017.   
 



 

8 
 

 
 
Request for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial activities and conditions 
of Public Compensation Mutual.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
request for additional financial information should be addressed to Public Compensation Mutual, 201 
South Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701 or email at akalt@poolpact.com.   



 

 
 

Casey Neilon, Inc. 
Accountants and Advisors 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Board of Directors of 

Public Compensation Mutual 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Public Compensation Mutual (a Nevada non-profit pure 
captive insurer) which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the related statements of 
income and comprehensive income, changes in surplus and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Public Compensation Mutual as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters – Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the expanded disclosures 
regarding short duration contracts contained in Note 6 to the financial statements be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 



  
 

10 
 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with the Nevada Administrative Code, we have also issued our report dated March 5, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Company’s internal control and compliance over financial reporting.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with this code and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audits. 

 
Carson City, Nevada 
March 5, 2019 
 



2018 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 855,598$          302,559$         

Investments 72,834,863       73,263,348      

Investment income receivable 318,679            285,885

Prepaid expenses 74,250              -                   

Total Assets 74,083,390$     73,851,792$    

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Accounts payable 30,800$            31,257$           

Reserve for loss and loss

adjustment expenses 4,549,000         3,082,000        

Unearned premiums 803,500            965,708           

Total Liabilities 5,383,300         4,078,965        

Surplus 70,595,348 68,327,042

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,895,258) 1,445,785

Total Surplus 68,700,090 69,772,827

Total Liabilities and Surplus 74,083,390$     73,851,792$    

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL

BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes

11



2018 2017

INCOME

Premiums 1,769,208$      1,588,740$      

Net investment income 2,138,929 1,826,118

Total Income 3,908,137        3,414,858        

EXPENSES

Administrative fees 172,829 67,905

Loss and loss adjustment expenses 1,467,002 123,000

Total Expenses 1,639,831 190,905

Net Income Before Income Taxes 2,268,306        3,223,953        

Provision for income taxes -                   -                   

Net Income 2,268,306$      3,223,953$      

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale

securities arising during the period (3,353,577)$     2,237,124$      

Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses

recognized in net income 12,534             (381,914)          

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (3,341,043)       1,855,210        

Comprehensive Income (Loss) (1,072,737)$     5,079,163$      

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes

12



Accumulated 

Other

Comprehensive Total

Surplus Income (Loss) Surplus

Balance, December 31, 2016 40,103,089$       (409,425)$            39,693,664$       

Net income 3,223,953           -                       3,223,953           

Surplus contributions 25,000,000         -                       25,000,000         

Unrealized holding gains (losses)

arising during the period -                      2,237,124             2,237,124           

Less: Reclassification adjustment for

gains realized in net income -                      (381,914)              (381,914)             

Balance, December 31, 2017 68,327,042$       1,445,785$           69,772,827$       

Net income 2,268,306           -                       2,268,306           

Surplus contributions -                      -                       -                      

Unrealized holding gains (losses)

arising during the period -                      (3,353,577)           (3,353,577)          

Less: Reclassification adjustment for

losses realized in net income -                      12,534                  12,534                

Balance, December 31, 2018 70,595,348$       (1,895,258)$         68,700,090$       

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SURPLUS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes

13



2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES:

Net income 2,268,306$         3,223,953$      

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:

(Gains) losses on sale of securities 12,534                (381,914)          

Amortization of premium or discount 169,591              141,737           

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Investment income receivable (32,794)              (157,691)          

Prepaid expenses (74,250)              

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for loss and loss 

adjustment expenses 1,467,000           123,000           

Accounts payable (457)                   10,383             

Unearned premiums (162,208)            342,675           

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,647,722           3,302,143        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of securities (6,027,204)         (34,723,158)     

Sale of securities 2,932,521           6,116,021        

Net Cash (Used) by Investing Activities (3,094,683)         (28,607,137)     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:

Surplus contributions -                     25,000,000      

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities -                     25,000,000      

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 553,039              (304,994)          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Period 302,559              607,553

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Period 855,598$            302,559$         

PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes

14



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

15 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
     Nature of Operations: 
 

Public Compensation Mutual (“the Company”), a Nevada nonprofit pure captive mutual insurer formed 
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 694C, is engaged in the business of providing reinsurance for the 
Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT). Effective July 18, 2013, the Company became a pure captive 
authorized by State of Nevada Division of Insurance, prior to this date, the Company was an association 
captive.  PACT is a quasi-governmental entity formed by local governments for the purpose of organizing an 
association for self-insured workers compensation.  The Company’s formation was approved on June 26, 2007 
by the State of Nevada Division of Insurance and began operations July 1, 2007. 

        
     Use of Estimates: 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

 
     Basis of Presentation: 
 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with reporting practices prescribed 
or permitted by the State of Nevada, Division of Insurance.  These financial statements are also presented in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America because the 
accounting practices prescribed or permitted under statutory authority, when applied to the Company do not 
vary materially from generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
     Cash Equivalents: 

 
For the purpose of presentation in the Company’s financial statements, cash equivalents are short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known amounts of cash and (b) so near to maturity 
that they present insignificant risk of changes in value due to changing interest rates. 

 
     Method of Accounting: 
 

The Company prepares its financial statements on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income when 
earned and expenses when incurred. 

 
Securities Available for Sale: 

 
Investments not classified as either trading or held-to-maturity are reported at fair value, adjusted for other than 
temporary declines in fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from net income and reported as a 
separate component of surplus.  The fair value of securities is determined by quoted market prices and 
observable information for similar items in active or inactive markets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

16 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 
 
Valuation of Investments: 

 
The Company has adopted and implemented FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, which provides a 
framework for measuring fair value under GAAP.  This statement defines fair value as the exchange price that 
would be received for an asset, or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price), in the principal or most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the 
measurement date.  FASB ASC 820-10 requires that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable 
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  FASB ASC 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, 
which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels.  

 
 There are three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value, as described below: 
 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

 
Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly through corroboration with observable market data. 

 
Level 3:  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, that is, inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s 
own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability 
(including assumptions about risk) developed based on the best information available in the 
circumstances.   

   
Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses: 

 
Loss and loss adjustment expenses includes an amount determined from loss reports on individual cases and 
estimates of the cost of claims incurred but not reported.  Such liabilities are necessarily based on estimates and, 
while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of, or less than, the 
amounts provided.  It is reasonably possible that the estimate will change within one year of the date of the 
financial statements.  The loss liabilities were developed from a combination of the insurance industry loss 
payment and reporting patterns.  The data was developed and trended, using standard actuarial techniques, to 
meet the Company's premium rate structure and experience.  The methods for making such estimates and for 
establishing the resulting liability are continually reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in earnings 
currently. 

 
Premiums: 

 
Premiums are generally recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the policy term.  The portion of 
premiums that will be earned in the future are deferred and reported as unearned premiums. 

     
      Reinsurance: 
 

In the normal course of business, the Company may seek to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or 
other events that cause unfavorable underwriting results by purchasing reinsurance at certain levels of risk in 
various areas of exposure with other insurance enterprises. 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

17 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 
       
     Income Tax Status: 
 

Under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, and pursuant to regulations and rulings issued by the Internal 
Revenue Service, organizations formed, operated and funded by political subdivisions formed to pool casualty 
and other risks arising from their obligations concerning public liability, may exclude income derived from 
such activities from taxable income.  Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements, and no federal tax returns have been filed.   As no tax returns have been 
filed, there is no statute of limitations to toll, and all years remain open to potential adjustment. 

 
     Investments and Investment Income: 
 

Captive insurance companies are governed by NRS 694C.340 regarding allowable investments, however, as a 
pure captive, the Company is not subject to any restrictions on allowable investments.  The Board has, by 
policy, implemented investment guidelines to which the Company adheres such that investments are in 
accordance with NRS 682A. 
 

     Credit Risk: 
 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a security will default on principal and interest in the security.   The 
investment guidelines, do not limit investments based upon the rating of a security, but it is policy to limit those 
securities with potential default risk such that the Company’s annual investment income would exceed a loss on 
a single issuer’s securities. 
 

     Concentration of Credit Risk: 
 
The Company limits investments in any single mutual fund, exchange traded  fund or similar vehicle to no 
more than 10% of assets. 

 
     Interest Rate Risk: 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
The Company minimizes this risk by maturity diversification such that aggregate price losses on instruments 
with maturities exceeding one year shall not be greater than coupon interest and investment income received 
from the balance of the portfolio. 
 

Prior Year Reclassifications: 
 

The prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified where applicable to conform to the current year’s 
presentation. 

 
NOTE 2 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 
 
      Recently Adopted Accounting Standards: 
 

In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 
Number 2015-09, Disclosures About Short-Duration Contracts (Topic 944).  This standard expands the 
disclosures that an insurance entity must provide about its short-duration insurance contracts.  While ten years 
of information are required to be presented, all years presented in the claims development tables that precede 
the most recent reporting period should be considered supplementary information.  
 
 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

18 
 

NOTE 2 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued): 
 

The Company implemented this standard as required during 2017; however due to a difference in actuarial and 
accounting terminology the schedules provided by the actuary only included development on known claims. 
This has been corrected in 2018 and impacts supplementary information only.  

 
     Recently Issued Accounting Standards – Not Yet Adopted: 

 
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU Number 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10). 
This update replaces the guidance to classify equity securities with readily determinable fair values into 
different categories (trading or available-for sale) and requires equity securities to be measured at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognized in net income. Additionally, this update eliminates the method and 
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost. It 
requires financial instruments to be measured at fair value using the exit price notion. This update becomes 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal 
years. This update will result in a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, to retained earnings from accumulated 
other comprehensive income, which will be determined based on the fair value of securities at the effective date 
of adoption.  

 
NOTE 3 – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: 
 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value in conformity with FASB ASC 820-10: 

 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For these short term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value.  This fair value estimate represents a level 1 input as described in Note 1. 
 
Investments in Marketable Securities:  For investments in marketable securities, fair values are based on 
quoted market prices or dealer quotes if available.  If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is 
estimated using quoted market price for similar securities. This fair value estimate represents a level 2 
input as described in Note 1. 

 
The following table presents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

 
Fair Value measurement at reporting date using

December 31,

Quoted price in 
active markets 
for identical 

assets

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs
Description 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents 855,598$          $         855,598 -$                 -$                   
U.S. government obligations 9,096,588        -                   9,096,588        -                     
U.S states and local authorities 10,127,010      -                   10,127,010      -                     
International bonds 1,114,476        -                   1,114,476        -                     
U.S. corporate bonds 33,342,777      -                   33,342,777      -                     
Fixed income mutual funds 1,683               1,683               -                   -                     
Bond mutual funds 1,938,418        1,938,418        -                   -                     
Equity mutual funds 17,213,911      17,213,911      -                   -                     

Total 73,690,461$    20,009,610$    53,680,851$    -$                   
 

 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

19 
 

 
 
 
NOTE 3 – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued): 
 

Fair Value measurement at reporting date using

December 31,

Quoted price in 
active markets 
for identical 

assets

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs
Description 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents 302,559$          $         302,559 -$                 -$                   
U.S. government obligations 10,665,551      -                   10,665,551      -                     
U.S states and local authorities 10,277,940      -                   10,277,940      -                     
International bonds 198,188           -                   198,188           -                     
U.S. corporate bonds 31,660,480      -                   31,660,480      -                     
Fixed income mutual funds 1,659               1,659               -                   -                     
Bond mutual funds 1,998,358        1,998,358        -                   -                     
Equity mutual funds 18,461,172      18,461,172      -                   -                     

Total 73,565,907$    20,763,748$    52,802,159$    -$                   
 

 
There were no transfers between fair value levels during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 

NOTE 4 – CONCENTRATIONS: 
 

As detailed in Note 1, the Company provides reinsurance insurance coverage to PACT; additionally, PACT     
provided the surplus contribution to the Company, and is the sole insured. 

 
The Company maintains its cash balances in various institutions. The balances are insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.  The Company has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts. 
 
Additionally, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the company has certain cash equivalent and investment 
balances insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) up to $500,000 (with a limit of 
$250,000 for cash) per institution. In addition the Company’s investment policy provides additional 
coverage above the SIPC limits for any missing securities and cash in client investment accounts up to a 
firm aggregate limit of $1 billion (including up to $1.9 million for cash per client). The Company has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit 
risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

20 
 

NOTE 5 – INVESTMENTS: 
 

Available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of various investments as indicated 
below: 

Estimated Fair 
Cost Value Gains Losses

U.S. government obligations 9,492,495$            9,096,588$               -$                (395,907)$           
U.S states and local authorities 10,355,730            10,127,010               9,650               (238,370)             
International bonds 1,159,212              1,114,476                 -                  (44,736)               
U.S. corporate bonds 34,469,234            33,342,777               53,064             (1,179,521)          

Total debt securities 55,476,671            53,680,851               62,714             (1,858,534)          

Fixed income mutual funds 1,781                     1,683                        -                  (98)                      
Bond mutual funds 2,125,361              1,938,418                 -                  (186,943)             
Equity mutual funds 17,126,308            17,213,911               757,737           (670,134)             

Total equity securities 19,253,450            19,154,012               757,737           (857,175)             

Total available-for-sale securities 74,730,121$         72,834,863$            820,451$        (2,715,709)$        

Gross Unrealized
December 31, 2018

 
 

 

Estimated Fair 
Cost Value Gains Losses

U.S. government obligations 10,841,430$          10,665,551$             959$                (176,838)$           
U.S states and local authorities 10,422,951            10,277,940               32,255             (177,266)             
International bonds 199,906                 198,188                    -                  (1,718)                 
U.S. corporate bonds 31,940,062            31,660,480               130,941           (410,523)             

Total debt securities 53,404,349            52,802,159               164,155           (766,345)             

Fixed income mutual funds 1,670                     1,659                        -                  (11)                      
Bond mutual funds 2,013,694              1,998,358                 -                  (15,336)               
Equity mutual funds 16,397,850            18,461,172               2,063,322        -                      

Total equity securities 18,413,214            20,461,189               2,063,322        (15,347)               

Total available-for-sale securities 71,817,563$         73,263,348$            2,227,477$     (781,692)$           

Gross Unrealized
December 31, 2017

 
For purposes of determining gross realized gains, the cost of securities sold is based on specific 
identification.   
 
 

2018 2017

Sales proceeds 2,932,521$       6,116,021$       

Gross realized gains 200$                 393,163$          

Gross realized losses (12,734)$           (11,249)$           

 
 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

21 
 

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS (continued): 
 

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2018, aggregated by length 
of time individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, is as follows: 

  
 

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. government obligations  $       395,115  $       (10,759) 8,701,473$    (385,148)$      9,096,588$    (395,907)$      
U.S states and local authorities        1,616,680           (18,393) 7,602,548      (219,977)        9,219,228      (238,370)        
International bonds           478,375           (29,165) 636,100         (15,571)          1,114,475      (44,736)          
U.S. corporate bonds        8,246,822         (308,240) 19,853,562    (871,281)        28,100,384    (1,179,521)     
Fixed income mutual funds                    -                      -                 1,683                  (98) 1,683             (98)                 
Bond mutual funds                    -                      -          1,938,418         (186,943) 1,938,418      (186,943)        
Equity mutal funds        4,472,587         (670,134)                    -                      -   4,472,587      (670,134)        

Total available-for-sale 
securities 15,209,579$  (1,036,691)$   38,733,784$  (1,679,018)$   53,943,363$  (2,715,709)$   

12 Months or GreaterLess Than 12 Months Total

 
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more 
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the 
length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and 
near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Group to retain its investment in the 
issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. As management has 
the ability to hold the securities for the foreseeable future, no declines are deemed to be other-than-
temporary. 
 
All investments have been valued based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 
 
Contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

2018 2017

1 year or less 197,196$         -$                 
Due in 1 - 5 years 15,797,000      13,328,183      
Due in 5 - 10 years 17,857,716      18,259,041      
Due in 10 years or more 19,828,939      21,214,935      

Total investment in debt securities 53,680,851$   52,802,159$   

Estimated Fair Values

 
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some borrowers have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

22 
 

NOTE 6 – RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES: 
 

The Company provides coverage for members of PACT for worker’s compensation losses under a quota-
share reinsurance arrangement as illustrated in the following table: 

 

Fiscal Year

One-time 
corridor 

deductible
Quota 
share Insurance layer

Quota 
share Insurance layer

7/1/2007-7/1/2012 25% $2,000,000 excess of $500,000 $500,000
7/1/2012-7/1/2014 $250,000 excess of $500,000 25% $2,250,000 excess of $750,000 $500,000
7/1/2014-7/1/2017 $500,000 excess of $500,000 25% $2,000,000 excess of $1,000,000 -              
7/1/2017-7/1/2018 $700,000 excess of $300,000 25% $2,000,000 excess of $1,000,000 -              
7/1/2018-7/1/2019 $700,000 excess of $300,000 25% $2,000,000 excess of $1,000,000

Retention 1 Retention 2

 
Additionally, effective July 1, 2014, the Company also provides $1,500,000 aggregate excess (50% quota 
share of the $3,000,000 layer) above an attachment point of approximately $10,000,000. 
 
Loss reserve estimates are inherently uncertain because the ultimate amount the Company will pay for many 
of the claims it has incurred as of the balance sheet date will not be known for many years. The estimate of 
loss reserves is intended to equal the difference between the expected ultimate losses of all claims that have 
occurred as of a balance sheet date and amounts already paid. The Company establishes loss reserves based 
on its own analysis of emerging claims and review of the results of actuarial projections. The Company's 
aggregate carried reserve for unpaid losses is the sum of its reserves for each accident year and represents its 
best estimate of outstanding loss reserves. 
 
The amount by which estimated losses in the aggregate differ from those previously estimated for a specific 
time period is known as reserve “development.” Reserve development is unfavorable when losses ultimately 
settle for more than the amount reserved or subsequent estimates indicate a basis for reserve increases on 
open claims, causing the previously estimated loss reserves to be ''deficient.'' Reserve development is 
favorable when estimates of ultimate losses indicate a decrease in established reserves, causing the 
previously estimated loss reserves to be ''redundant.'' Development is reflected in the Company's operating 
results through an adjustment to incurred losses during the period in which it is recognized. 
 
The three main components of reserves for unpaid losses are case reserves, incurred but not reported (IBNR) 
loss reserves and reserves for loss adjustment expenses (LAE).  
 
When claims are reported, the Company establishes individual estimates of the ultimate cost of each claim 
(case reserves). These case reserves are continually monitored and revised in response to new information 
and for amounts paid. IBNR is an actuarial estimate of future payments on claims that have occurred but 
have not yet been reported. The Company also estimates and makes a provision for the extent to which the 
case reserves on known claims may develop.  IBNR reserves apply to the entire body of claims arising from 
a specific time period, rather than a specific claim. Most of the Company's IBNR reserves relate to estimated 
future claim payments on recorded open claims. 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

23 
 

NOTE 6 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, estimated unpaid losses have been determined to range from a 
recommended low of $4,549,000 to a recommended high of $5,172,000 based on actuarial estimates;  further 
the actuary has projected expected losses at $3,767,000. For the year ended December 31, 2017, estimated 
paid losses have been determined to range from a recommended low of $3,082,000 to a recommended high 
of $3,611,000 based on actuarial estimates;  further the actuary has projected expected losses at $2,418,000.  

 
Management has estimated reserves to be $4,549,000 and $3,082,000 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively.  This estimate is based on funding the Company at the 75% confidence level as recommended 
by the actuary.  Management has elected not to discount the reserves for anticipated investment income. 

 
Activity in the reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses account is summarized as follows: 
 

2018 2017

Balance at January 1 3,082,000$     2,959,000$     

Incurred related to:
Current year 2,102,000       726,000          
Prior years (635,000)         (603,000)         

Total incurred 1,467,000       123,000          

Net paid -                  -                  

Balance at December 31 4,549,000$    3,082,000$    

 
 

 
As a result of changes in estimates of incurred events in the prior year, the provision for losses changed by 
($635,000) and ($603,000), respectively, due to (lower)/higher than anticipated losses on the development of 
claims. 
 
The Company’s reserve estimates are based on loss experience and exposure data and have assumed future 
development of incurred and paid losses can be reasonably predicted on the basis of development of such 
losses in the recent past. 
 
The Company compiles and aggregates its claims data by grouping the claims according to the year in which 
the claim occurred (“accident year”) when analyzing claim payment and emergence patterns and trends over 
time.  It has been assumed that costs associated with workers compensation claims are decreasing 0.9% 
annually and average claim size are increasing by 3.0% annually.  For the purposes of defining claims 
frequency, the number of reported claims includes any claim that has case reserves and/or loss and LAE 
payments associated with them.  The Company has assumed that the average frequency of claims has an 
annual trend of 2.0%. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

24 
 

NOTE 6 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 

The following tables show the Company’s historical incurred and cumulative paid losses and LAE 
development, net of reinsurance as well as IBNR loss reserves and the number of reported claims on an 
aggregated basis as of December 31, 2018 for each of the previous 10 accident years: 

 
 

Accident 
Year

2009 (1) 2010 (1) 2011 (1) 2012 (1) 2013 (1) 2014 (1) 2015 (1) 2016 (1) 2017 (1) 2018 IBNR

 Cumulative 
number of 

reported claims 

2009 82.8$       591.9$     623.6$      $     701.6 738.4$      $     635.8  $     582.5  $     532.0  $     513.2  $      508.4  $     84.7 2
2010 31.3         58.0                   35.4 50.9                   24.2 38.7                     9.7 -           -            -         2
2011 32.6         55.9         45.7         26.0         20.3         -           -           -            -         0
2012 60.6         64.7         44.5         33.7         -           -           -            -         0
2013 80.7         493.0       421.5       466.4       319.9       410.6        13.9       0
2014 514.7       694.6       623.7       389.5       274.1        274.1     1
2015 494.0       774.8       636.3       309.1        309.1     0
2016 409.7       741.8       454.1        454.1     0
2017 393.1       1,705.1     1,062.1  1
2018 788.6        127.7     1
Total 4,450.0$   

(in thousands, except claims counts)

Years Ended December 31, 2018

Incurred Losses and LAE, Net of Reinsurance

 
 

      

Accident 
Year 2009 (1) 2010 (1) 2011 (1) 2012 (1) 2013 (1) 2014 (1) 2015 (1) 2016 (1) 2017 (1) 2018

2009 -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         
2010 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2011 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2012 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2013 -           -           -           -           -           -           
2014 -           -           -           -           -           
2015 -           -           -           -           
2016 -           -           -           
2017 -           -           
2018 -           
Total -$         
All outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE prior to 2009, net of reinsurance 99.0         
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance 4,549.0$  

(in thousands)

Cumulative Paid Losses and LAE, Net of Reinsurance

Years Ended December 31,

 
(1) Data presented for these calendar years is considered to be supplementary information, which is unaudited. 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

25 
 

NOTE 6 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 

The following table presents the average percentage payout of incurred claims by age, net of reinsurance, as 
of December 31, 2018 and is presented as required supplementary information, which is unaudited: 
 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

 
The following table represents a reconciliation of claims development to the aggregate carrying amount of 
the liability for unpaid losses and LAE: 

Liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance 4,549.0$        
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses -                 
Unallocated LAE -                 

Total liability for unpaid losses and LAE 4,549.0$        

 
 

NOTE 7 - SURPLUS CONTRIBUTION: 
 

The following is a summary of the surplus contributed to the Company from PACT pursuant to authorization 
by the Executive Committee of PACT:  

 

Years
Surplus PACT 
Contribution

2007 5,000,000$            
2008 5,600,000              
2009 5,000,000              
2010 8,017,375              
2011 3,406,464              
2012 135,598                 
2013 -                         
2014 -                         
2015 448,242                 
2016 1,093,260              
2017 25,000,000            
2018 -                         

Total 53,700,939$          

 
 

NRS 694C.250 requires a pure captive to maintain capital of not less than $200,000, the Company is in 
compliance with this requirement as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

 



PUBLIC COMPENSATION MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

26 
 

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTIES:  
 

All premiums and surplus contributions are made by PACT and all claims activity is attributable to the quota 
share reinsurance agreement with PACT. 

   
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 5, 2019, which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.  
 



 

27 
 

Casey Neilon, Inc. 
Accountants and Advisors 

 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 694C.210 
 
To the Board of Directors 
    Public Compensation Mutual 
 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the financial statements of Public Compensation Mutual (PCM), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 
31, 2018, and the related statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated March 5, 2019. 
 

In planning and performing our audit of the GAAP basis financial statements of Public Compensation 
Mutual as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PCM’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, detected or corrected on a timely basis. 

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and would 

not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Public Risk 

Mutual failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their bylaws, articles of 
incorporation, or business plan, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed 
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Company's noncompliance with the above-
referenced terms, insofar as they relate to accounting matters 
 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, 
others within the organization and state insurance departments to whose jurisdiction PCM is subject and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 

 
 
 
Carson City, Nevada 
March 5, 2019 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 



 

 

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 PAGE NO. 
 
PRESIDENT’S LETTER 1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 2-8 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 9-10 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
    Balance Sheets 11 
    Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 12 
    Statements of Changes in Surplus 13 
    Statements of Cash Flows 14 
    Notes to Financial Statements 15-26   
 
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
    Report on Internal Control and Compliance over Financial Reporting Based on 
    an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  
       with Nevada Administrative Code 694C.210                                                                                                          27



President’s Letter 

1 
 

 
There were many challenges for Public Risk Mutual (PRM) in 2018 but the results showed the strength 
of its business plan.  Here are few of the primary highlights: 
 
 PRM is a pure captive of the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPAIP). The total NPAIP surplus 

contribution of $29,477,263 remained unchanged since there were no additional surplus 
contributions to PRM.   

 PRM continued to provide $300,000 excess of NPAIP’s $200,000 retention for property reinsurance. 
 PRM continued its data security liability reinsurance program for all NPAIP members and has 

continued to support a passive network assessment (PNA) program to help prevent cyber claims. 
These assessments have helped mitigate protecting our members from cyber‐attacks and the 
resulting insurance costs related to cyber‐attacks.  This risk management initiative has been well 
received by our membership.  

 PRM took an additional retention of 25% of the School Districts liability quota share for $2,500,000 
excess of $500,000.  United Educators provides liability coverage for the other 75%. This type of 
additional coverage is a continuation of PRM’s business plan of being a conduit for excess coverage 
for our clients. 

 Besides PRM’s addition to its liability program, the quota share of 30% of $2,500,000 excess of 
$500,000 for non‐school district entities as well as the second retention of 25% of $7,000,000 excess 
of $3,000,000 for all members remained the same as in 2017. 

 Total investments were reduced from $42,335,839 in 2017 to $40,914,152 in 2018.  Despite this 
reduction, PRM’s surplus was only reduced from $38,148,484 in 2017 to $37,989,713 in 2018.  The 
primary reason for both reductions were the increase in reserve for loss and loss adjustment and 
higher claims expense.  PRM’s business plan strategy of maintaining enough surplus contribution for 
PRM to help provide additional coverage for our members, coupled with the business plan of 
utilizing a conservative investment strategy is successfully maturing as planned. 

 PRM’s investment income rose from $1,137,542 in 2017 to $1,266,846 in 2018.  PRM’s investment 
portfolio includes U.S. government obligations, U.S. state and local bonds, U.S. corporate bonds, 
fixed income mutual funds, bond mutual funds and equity mutual funds. 

 One of PRM’s main goals is to continue increasing investment earnings while providing our members 
added value to property and liability coverage through cost effective reinsurance.  This has been 
instrumental when PRM is seeking reinsurance and excess quotes from its insurance partners. 

 
Due to several liability losses during 2018, the loss and loss adjustment expenses did increase from 
$1,861,698 in 2017 to $2,051,058 in 2018.  These liability claim losses were from different past 
insurance years but the settlements occurred in one year.  This type of loss activity is a reminder of why 
PRM exists to help lessen any rate increases while still providing enough funds to cover our losses.    
 
I personally want to thank the board of trustees for NPAIP and the PRM Captive board of trustees for 
their commitment to the dynamic development of the coverages and risk management products that 
we have been able to support.  Despite several losses being settled in one year, PRM has remained true 
to its business plan in providing appropriate coverage and rate stabilization for our members. 
 
Best, 
 

Michael Rebaleati  
 
PRM President 



 

2 
 

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 
Public Risk Mutual’s discussion and analysis is designed to, (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant 
financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the entity’s financial activities, (c) identify changes in the 
Company’s financial position (its ability to address next and subsequent years challenges), and (d) 
identify any material deviations from the financial plan.  
 
We encourage readers to read this information in conjunction with the President’s letter, financial 
statements and notes to gain a more complete understanding of the information presented.  
 
Company Overview 
Public Risk Mutual (“PRM”), a Nevada nonprofit pure captive mutual insurer formed pursuant to Nevada 
Revised Statutes 694C, is engaged in the business of providing reinsurance for the Nevada Public Agency 
Insurance Pool (POOL).  Effective July 18, 2013, the Company became a pure captive authorized by the 
State of Nevada Division of Insurance.  PRM’s formation was approved on July 26, 2004 by the State of 
Nevada Division of Insurance and began operations September 1, 2004.  Currently, the Company issues 
a single reinsurance policy to POOL each year and the underlying POOL program in turn issues a  
certificate of participation to the members with a copy of the POOL coverage form providing coverage 
details.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, including the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
The auditor’s report offers an unmodified opinion on the financial statements, the best opinion that can 
be attained.  
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of income and expenses during the accounting period.  Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 
 
PRM has identified the estimates inherent in the valuation of investments and loss reserves (including 
reserves for unreported claims‐ IBNR) as critical in that they involve a higher degree of judgment and are 
subject to a significant degree of variability.  In developing these estimates, management makes 
subjective and complex judgements that are inherently uncertain and subject to material change as 
facts and circumstances develop.  Although variability is inherent in these estimates, management 
believes the amounts provided are appropriate and conservative based upon the facts available as of 
the date of the financial statements. The estimates were made with the assistance of an independent 
outside actuarial firm in relation to the IBNR and overall loss reserve adequacy. 
 



 

3 
 

Investments 
One significant estimate inherent in the valuation of investments is the evaluation of fair value and 
other than temporary impairment (OTTI).  Fair value requires management judgment on the appropriate 
classes of assets and liabilities for which disclosures about fair value measurement should be provided.  
Fair value for investments primarily is a quantitative assessment.  For debt and equity securities, class is 
determined on the basis, nature and risk of the investments.  A full disclosure of PRM’s fair value 
methodology can be found in Note 3 Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Notes to the Audited 
Financial Statements. 
 
The determination of OTTI is a quantitative and qualitative process, which is subject to judgment in the 
determination of whether declines in the fair value of investments are other than temporary.  The cost 
basis of fixed maturity investments is adjusted for impairments in value, deemed to be other than 
temporary, with the associated realized loss reported in net income.  Factors considered in evaluating 
whether a decline in value is other than temporary include: 1) the magnitude of the decline in value; 2) 
current economic conditions and the financial condition and near‐term prospects of the issuer; 3) the 
amount of time that the fair value has been less than cost; and 4) the estimated period over which the 
security is expected to recover and whether PRM’s cash or working capital requirements and 
contractual or regulatory requirements may indicate a need to sell the security before its forecasted 
recovery.  
 
Cash and investments of $41,224,003 are available to meet current liabilities, including reserves for loss 
and loss adjustment expenses of $4,195,532.  Total liabilities include accounts payable, reserves for loss 
and loss adjustment expenses and unearned premiums. This is a conservative measure of cash and 
investments available to pay current obligations.  PRM’s cash ratio is 9.8, meaning that it has 9.8 times 
the unrestricted cash and investments on hand to meet its obligations.  Last year’s cash ratio was 13.5. 
 
Investments as of December 31, 2018 were $40,914,152 compared to 2017 balance of $42,335,839.  
Thus, a decrease of $1,421,687 or 3.4% during the year. The decrease is due primarily to the payment of 
losses during the year. As noted in Note 3, Level 1 quoted price in active market for identical assets were 
valued at $15,201,017, the Level 2 significant other observable inputs at $26,022,986 and there were no 
Level 3 assets.  The following is an overview of the fair value of investments allocation of available for 
sale: 
 

 
 

Fair Values of Investments

Cash & Equivalents US Gov't Obligations US State & Local

International Bonds US Corporate Bonds Fixed Income Mutual Funds

Bond Mutual Funds Equity Mutual Funds



 

4 
 

As noted in Note 6‐ Investments, the contractual maturities of available‐for‐sale debt securities at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 
 
            Estimated Fair Values 
                  2018    2017 
1 year or less        $   594,548       $500,834 
Due in 1 – 5 years        7,664,657      7,737,294 
Due in 5 ‐ 10 years        9,064,588      8,952,749 
Due in 10 years or more     10,103,989    10,737,924 
  Total Investment in debt securities      $27,427,782               $27,928,801 
 

 
 
Investment Income Receivable 
The investment income receivable at December 31, 2018 is $176,272 compared to $166,274 in 2017.  
This is a change of $9,998 or 6.0%.  This is due primarily to the timing of the payment of accrued interest 
on the investments. 
 
Loss Reserves 
Loss reserves are estimates of losses and loss development and as such will differ from the ultimate 
results.  Therefore, one of the critical accounting estimates is the proper amount of reserves to be set 
aside to meet net future liabilities of the current in‐force business.  Changes in or deviations from the 
assumptions used to develop the loss reserves can significantly affect PRM’s reserve levels and related 
future operations.  Assumptions include company methodology for underwriting and claims handling 
and current estimates of the legal, inflation rate, and social environments.   Annually, PRM retains an 
outside independent actuary, to provide a loss reserve opinion and establish a range for PRM’s loss 
reserves.  PRM’s policy is to book reserves at the 75% confidence level as recommended by the actuary.  
Management has elected not to discount the reserves for anticipated investment income.  See Note 7‐
Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense note in the financial statements.   
 
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses increased from $2,495,000 to $3,591,000 at December 
31, 2018 an increase of $1,096,000 or 43.9% during the year.  This increase is due to the claim 
development in the current year and increases in prior year claims loss development. 
 

1 yr or less Due in 1 ‐5 years Due in 5 ‐10 years Due in 10 or more



 

5 
 

Unearned Premiums 
PRM writes only 12‐month insurance policies effective July 1st the year written, so all of the $586,000 
unearned assessments carried in 2018 will be fully earned in 2019.   
 
Surplus Contributions 
There were no surplus contributions from NPAIP in 2018. Surplus contributions from NPAIP during 2017 
were $10,000,000 as approved by the Board at their meeting held on March 22, 2017. This brings the 
total surplus contribution into PRM at $29,477,263.  See Note 8 Surplus Contributions for more details. 
The following chart indicated the NPAIP surplus contributions to PRM: 
 

 
 
Surplus 
PRM’s total surplus at December 31, 2018 was $37,209,743 a decrease of $2,291,691 from the 
December 31, 2017 balance of $39,501,434.  The decrease is the result from the net loss of $158,771 
combined with accumulated other comprehensive loss of $2,132,920 during the year.  At December 31, 
2017, PRM had paid‐in capital (NPAIP’s contributions) of $29,477,263 and accumulated retained 
earnings and other comprehensive income of $10,024,171 to account for the total surplus of 
$39,501,434 in 2017.  
  
The following is the comparative Balance Sheet of Public Risk Mutual as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 

 ‐

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

NPAIP Contributions

NPAIP Contributions



 

6 
 

 
 
 
Net Income from Operations 
PRM reported net loss from operations for the year ended December 2018 of $158,771 a decrease of 
($178,163) from the prior year end income of $19,392.  This decrease is primarily driven by an increase 
in the required loss and loss adjustment expenses of $2,051,058 due to current and prior year’s loss 
development for claims.  This is offset by investment income increases due to increased book yield on 
the investments.  
 
Earned Premiums 
Earned premiums increased by $80,750 or 7.4% to $1,167,000 at December 31, 2018 compared to prior 
year amount of $1,086,250.  Pricing is determined with the assistance of the independent actuary. 
 
Investment Income Including Realized Gains 
Investment income of $1,266,846, including realized losses on investments of ($32,821), at December 
31, 2018 was $129,304 or 11.4% more than the same period during 2017. The increase was primarily 
due to the higher average investment balances, higher investment book yields offset by realized losses 
from the sale of securities during the year. See Note 6 Investments for greater details.  
 
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses 
Loss and loss adjustment expenses increased by $189,360 from $1,861,698 in 2017 to $2,051,058 in 
2018.  The increase was primarily due to the adverse development of current and prior year losses 
related to property business which had been experienced in 2017 and 2016 due to flood events. 
 



 

7 
 

Administrative Expenses  
Administrative expenses including membership services expenses were $541,559 and $342,702 
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.  The increase of $198,857 was 
attributed primarily to an increase in the member services contract for cybersecurity assessments.  
There was $412,238 in membership services expenses for the cybersecurity program during the year 
compared to $266,471 in the prior year.  
     
Other Comprehensive Income 
Other comprehensive income, which consists of unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities 
arising during the period less reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses recognized in net income.  In 
2018, the unrealized losses on available for sale securities during the period was ($2,165,741) compared 
to unrealized gains of $1,465,793 in 2017.  The reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses recognized 
in net income were $32,821 in 2018 compared to ($219,297) in 2017.  This results in total Other 
Comprehensive Income (Loss) of ($2,132,920) in 2018 and $1,246,496 in 2017. This increase in Other 
Comprehensive Loss is the result of the decrease in the values of the stock market and increases in 
interest rates on the fixed rate portion of the investment portfolio managed by New England Asset 
Management. As the market interest rates increase and exceed the book interest rates, there is an 
unrealized loss on the available for sale securities arising during the period. 
 
The following is the Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017.   
 

 
 
 



 

8 
 

Request for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial activities and conditions 
of Public Risk Mutual to all having an interest in PRM.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to Public Risk 
Mutual, 201 South Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701 or email at akalt@poolpact.com.   



 

 

Casey Neilon, Inc. 
Accountants and Advisors 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors of 

Public Risk Mutual 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Public Risk Mutual (a Nevada non-profit pure captive 
insurer) which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the related statements of income and 
comprehensive income, changes in surplus and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Public Risk Mutual as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters – Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the expanded disclosures 
regarding short duration contracts contained in Note 7 to the financial statements be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 



 

 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with the Nevada Administrative Code, we have also issued our report dated March 5, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Company’s internal control and compliance over financial reporting.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with this code and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audits. 

 
Carson City, Nevada 
March 5, 2019 



2018 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 309,851$         147,455$         

Deposits 5,000 -                   

Investments 40,914,152      42,335,839

Investment income receivable 176,272           166,274

Total Assets 41,405,275$    42,649,568$    

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Accrued expenses 18,532$           72,134$           

Unearned premium 586,000           581,000

Reserve for loss and loss adjustment

expenses 3,591,000        2,495,000

Total Liabilities 4,195,532        3,148,134        

Surplus 37,989,713 38,148,484

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (779,970) 1,352,950

Total Surplus 37,209,743      39,501,434      

Total Liabilities and Surplus 41,405,275$    42,649,568$    

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL

BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes.

11



2018 2017

REVENUES

Premiums earned 1,167,000$             1,086,250$        

Net investment income 1,266,846               1,137,542

Total Revenues 2,433,846               2,223,792          

EXPENSES

Administrative expenses 129,321                  76,231

Membership services expense 412,238 266,471             

Loss and loss adjustment expenses 2,051,058               1,861,698

Total Expenses 2,592,617               2,204,400          

Net Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes (158,771)                 19,392               

Provision for income taxes -                          -                     

Net Income (Loss) (158,771)$               19,392$             

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale

securities arising during the period (2,165,741)$            1,465,793$        

Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses

recognized in net income 32,821                    (219,297)            

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (2,132,920)              1,246,496          

Comprehensive Income (Loss) (2,291,691)$            1,265,888$        

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes.

12



Accumulated 

Other

Comprehensive Total

Surplus Income (Loss) Surplus

Balance, December 31, 2016 28,129,092$    106,454$          28,235,546$    

Surplus contributions 10,000,000      -                    10,000,000      

Net income 19,392             -                    19,392             

Unrealized holding gains

arising during the period -                   1,465,793         1,465,793        

Less: Reclassification adjustment for

(gains) included in net income -                   (219,297)           (219,297)          

Balance, December 31, 2017 38,148,484      1,352,950         39,501,434      

Net loss (158,771)          -                    (158,771)          

Unrealized holding losses

arising during the period -                   (2,165,741) (2,165,741)       

Less: Reclassification adjustment for

losses included in net income -                   32,821              32,821             

Balance, December 31, 2018 37,989,713$    (779,970)$         37,209,743$    

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SURPLUS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes.

13



2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss) (158,771)$          19,392$              

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 

cash provided by operating activities:

Realized (gains) losses on sales of securities 32,821                (219,297)            

Amortization of premium or discount 94,748                118,277              

Changes in assets and liabilities:

 (Increase) decrease in:

Investment income receivable (9,998)                (33,858)              

Deposits (5,000)                -                     

Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued expenses (53,602)              55,908                

Unearned premium 5,000                  75,750                

Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses 1,096,000           586,000              

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,001,198           602,172              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sales of securities 2,539,017           8,694,596           

Purchase of investments (3,377,819)         (19,385,392)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (838,802)            (10,690,796)       

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from contribution of surplus -                     10,000,000         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities -                     10,000,000         

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 162,396              (88,624)              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Year 147,455 236,079

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Year 309,851$            147,455$            

PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes.

14



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

15 
 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
     Nature of Operations: 
 

Public Risk Mutual (the “Company”), a Nevada nonprofit captive association mutual insurer formed 
pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 694C, is engaged in the business of  providing reinsurance for the 
Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL).  Effective July 18, 2013, the Company became a pure 
captive authorized by State of Nevada Division of Insurance. POOL is a quasi-governmental entity formed 
by an intergovernmental agreement between political subdivisions of the State of Nevada, and organized to 
operate as a group self insurer.  The Company’s formation was approved on July 26, 2004 by the State of 
Nevada Division of Insurance and began operations September 1, 2004. 

 
     Use of Estimates: 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
     Basis of Presentation: 
 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with reporting practices 
prescribed or permitted by the State of Nevada Division of Insurance.  These financial statements are also 
presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
because the accounting practices prescribed or permitted under statutory authority, when applied to the 
Company, do not vary materially from generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
     Cash Equivalents: 

 
For the purpose of presentation in the Company’s financial statements, cash equivalents are short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known amounts of cash and (b) so near to 
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value due to changing interest rates.  

 
Method of Accounting: 

 
The Company prepares its financial statements on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income 
when earned and expenses when incurred. 

 
Securities Available for Sale: 

 
Investments not classified as either trading or held-to-maturity are reported at fair value, adjusted for other 
than temporary declines in fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from net income and 
reported as a separate component of surplus.  Realized gains and losses are calculated using the specific 
identification method.  The fair value of securities is determined by quoted market prices and observable 
information for similar items in active or inactive markets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

16 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 
 

  Valuation of Investments: 
 

The Company has adopted and implemented FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, which 
provides a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP.  This statement defines fair value as the 
exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price), in the 
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants on the measurement date.  FASB ASC 820-10 requires that valuation techniques maximize the 
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  FASB ASC 820-10 establishes a 
fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels.  

 
 There are three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value, as described below: 
 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

 
Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly through corroboration with observable market data. 

 
Level 3:  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, that is, inputs that reflect the reporting 
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the 
asset or liability (including assumptions about risk) developed based on the best information 
available in the circumstances.   

 
    Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses: 
 

Loss and loss adjustment expenses includes an amount determined from loss reports on individual cases 
and estimates of the cost of claims incurred but not reported.  Such liabilities are necessarily based on 
estimates and, while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess 
of, or less than, the amounts provided.  It is reasonably possible that the estimate will change within one 
year of the date of the financial statements.  The loss liabilities were developed from a combination of the 
insurance industry loss payment and reporting patterns.  The data was developed and trended, using 
standard actuarial techniques, to meet the Company's premium rate structure and experience.  The methods 
for making such estimates and for establishing the resulting liability are continually reviewed, and any 
adjustments are reflected in earnings currently. 

 
     Premiums: 
 

Premiums are generally recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the policy term.  The portion of 
premiums that will be earned in the future are deferred and reported as unearned premiums. 
 

     Reinsurance: 
 

In the normal course of business, the Company may seek to reduce the loss that may arise from 
catastrophes or other events that cause unfavorable underwriting results by purchasing reinsurance at 
certain levels of risk in various areas of exposure with other insurance enterprises. 

 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

17 
 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 
  
     Income Tax Status: 
 

Under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, and pursuant to regulations and rulings issued by the Internal 
Revenue Service, organizations formed, operated and funded by political subdivisions formed to pool 
casualty and other risks arising from their obligations concerning public liability, may exclude income 
derived from such activities from taxable income.  Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been 
provided in the accompanying financial statements, and no federal tax returns have been filed.   As no tax 
returns have been filed, there is no statute of limitations to toll, and all years remain open to potential 
adjustment. 

 
    Investments and Investment Income: 
 

Captive insurance companies are governed by NRS 694C.340 regarding allowable investments, however, 
as a pure captive, the Company is not subject to any restrictions on allowable investments.  The Board has, 
by policy, implemented investment guidelines to which the Company adheres such that investments are in 
accordance with NRS 682A. 
 

     Credit Risk: 
 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a security will default on principal and interest in the security.   The 
investment guidelines, do not limit investments based upon the rating of a security, but it is policy to limit 
those securities with potential default risk such that the Company’s annual investment income would 
exceed a loss on a single issuer’s securities. 
 

     Concentration of Credit Risk: 
 
The Company limits investments in any single mutual fund, exchange traded fund or similar vehicle to no 
more than 10% of assets, except for diversified money market funds approved by the NAIC (National 
Association of Insurance Commissioners).    
 

     Interest Rate Risk: 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  The Company minimizes this risk through maturity diversification such that aggregate price 
losses on instruments with maturities exceeding one year shall not be greater than coupon interest and 
investment income received from the balance of the portfolio. 

 
Prior Year Reclassifications: 

 
The prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified where applicable to conform to the current 
year’s presentation. 

 
NOTE 2 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 
 
      Recently Adopted Accounting Standards: 
 

In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) Number 2015-09, Disclosures About Short-Duration Contracts (Topic 944).  This standard 
expands the disclosures that an insurance entity must provide about its short-duration insurance contracts.  
While ten years of information are required to be presented, all years presented in the claims development 
tables that precede the most recent reporting period should be considered supplementary information. 

 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

18 
 

 
NOTE 2 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued): 
 

The company implemented this standard as required during 2017; however due to a difference in actuarial 
and accounting terminology the schedules provided by the actuary only included development of known 
claims. This has been corrected in 2018 and impacts supplementary information only.  

 
      Recently Issued Accounting Standards – Not Yet Adopted: 

 
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU Number 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-
10). This update replaces the guidance to classify equity securities with readily determinable fair values 
into different categories (trading or available-for sale) and requires equity securities to be measured at fair 
value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. Additionally, this update eliminates the method 
and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized 
cost. It requires financial instruments to be measured at fair value using the exit price notion. This update 
becomes effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within 
those fiscal years. This update will result in a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, to retained earnings 
from accumulated other comprehensive income, which will be determined based on the fair value of 
securities at the effective date of adoption. 

 
NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: 

 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value in conformity with FASB ASC 820-10: 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For these short term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value.  This fair value estimate represents a level 1 input as described in Note 1. 
 
Investments in Marketable Securities:  For investments in marketable securities, fair values are based 
on quoted market prices or dealer quotes if available.  If a quoted market price is not available, fair 
value is estimated using quoted market price for similar securities. This fair value estimate represents 
a level 2 input as described in Note 1. 

 
The following table presents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

 
Fair Value measurement at reporting date using

December 31,

Quoted price in 
active markets 
for identical 

assets

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs
Description 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents 309,851$          $         309,851 -$                 -$                   
U.S. government obligations 4,873,403        1,404,796        3,468,607        -                     
U.S states and local authorities 5,217,983        -                   5,217,983        -                     
International bonds 486,510           -                   486,510           -                     
U.S. corporate bonds 16,849,886      -                   16,849,886      -                     
Fixed income mutual funds 1,147               1,147               -                   -                     
Bond mutual funds 1,364,019        1,364,019        -                   -                     
Equity mutual funds 12,121,204      12,121,204      -                   -                     

Total 41,224,003$    15,201,017$    26,022,986$    -$                   

 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

19 
 

 
NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued): 

 
Fair Value measurement at reporting date using

December 31,

Quoted price in 
active markets 
for identical 

assets

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs
Description 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents 147,455$          $         147,455 -$                 -$                   
U.S. government obligations 5,457,021        1,766,816        3,690,205        -                     
U.S states and local authorities 5,305,177        -                   5,305,177        -                     
International bonds 260,107           -                   260,107           -                     
U.S. corporate bonds 16,906,496      -                   16,906,496      -                     
Fixed income mutual funds 1,130               1,130               -                   -                     
Bond mutual funds 1,406,218        1,406,218        -                   -                     
Equity mutual funds 12,999,690      12,999,690      -                   -                     

Total 42,483,294$    16,321,309$    26,161,985$    -$                   

 
There were no transfers between fair value levels during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

 
NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATIONS: 

 
As detailed in Note 1, the Company provides excess insurance coverage to POOL; additionally, POOL 
provided the surplus contribution to the Company, and is the sole insured. 
 
The Company maintains its cash balances in various institutions.  The balances are insured by Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.  The Company has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts.  
 
Additionally, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the company has certain cash equivalent and investment 
balances insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) up to $500,000 (with a limit of 
$250,000 for cash) per institution. In addition, the Company’s investment policy provides additional 
coverage above the SIPC limits for any missing securities and cash in client investment accounts up to a 
firm aggregate limit of $1 billion (including up to $1.9 million for cash per client). The Company has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit 
risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

 
NOTE 5 - REINSURANCE ACTIVITY: 
 

Until June 30, 2011, the Company ceded insurance to another company; however, effective July 1, 2010, 
POOL no longer passes the property premiums through the Company, and is directly reinsured by an 
outside reinsurer. This reinsurance contract does not relieve the Company from its obligations to 
policyholders. Failure of the reinsurer to honor its obligations could result in losses to the Company; the 
Company does not believe that there is a substantial risk of the reinsurer not honoring its obligations.  All 
claims that were incurred during the period of reinsurance coverage are now closed, and there are no 
outstanding liabilities or receivables attributable to the reinsurance policies. 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

20 
 

 
NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS: 
 

Available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of various investments as 
indicated below: 
 

Cost
Estimated Fair 

Value Gains Losses

U.S. government obligations 5,020,459$      4,873,403$      6,094$             (153,150)$          

U.S. states and local authorities 5,289,621        5,217,983        11,477             (83,115)              

International bonds 499,964           486,510           -                   (13,454)              
U.S. corporate bonds 17,299,713      16,849,886      29,785             (479,612)            

Total debt securities 28,109,757      27,427,782      47,356             (729,331)            

Fixed income mutual funds 1,213               1,147               -                   (66)                     
Bond mutual funds 1,495,169        1,364,019        -                   (131,150)            
Equity mutual funds 12,087,983      12,121,204      504,927           (471,706)            

Total equity securities 13,584,365      13,486,370      504,927           (602,922)            

Total available-for-sale securities 41,694,122$   40,914,152$   552,283$         (1,332,253)$      

December 31, 2018
Gross Unrealized

 
 

Cost
Estimated Fair 

Value Gains Losses

U.S. government obligations 5,516,853$      5,457,021$      296$                (60,128)$            

U.S. states and local authorities 5,319,313        5,305,177        35,479             (49,615)              

International bonds 260,439           260,107           -                   (332)                   
U.S. corporate bonds 16,893,318      16,906,496      112,765           (99,587)              

Total debt securities 27,989,923      27,928,801      148,540           (209,662)            

Fixed income mutual funds 1,138               1,130               -                   (8)                       
Bond mutual funds 1,416,613        1,406,218        -                   (10,395)              
Equity mutual funds 11,575,215      12,999,690      1,424,475        -                     

Total equity securities 12,992,966      14,407,038      1,424,475        (10,403)              

Total available-for-sale securities 40,982,889$   42,335,839$   1,573,015$      (220,065)$         

December 31, 2017
Gross Unrealized

 
For purposes of determining gross realized gains, the cost of securities sold is based on specific 
identification.  Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale debt and equity securities in 
the amount of ($779,970) and $1,352,950 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively,  have been included in accumulated other comprehensive income. 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

21 
 

NOTE 6 – INVESTMENTS (continued): 
 

During 2018 and 2017, sales proceeds and gross realized gains and losses on securities classified as 
available-for-sale were: 

2018 2017

Sales proceeds 2,539,017$       8,694,596$       

Gross realized gains -$                  244,663$          

Gross realized losses (32,821)$           (25,366)$           

Contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as 
follows: 

2018 2017

1 year or less 594,548$         500,834$         
Due in 1 - 5 years 7,664,657        7,737,294        
Due in 5 - 10 years 9,064,588        8,952,749        
Due in 10 years or more 10,103,989      10,737,924      

Total investment in debt securities 27,427,782$   27,928,801$   

Estimated Fair Values

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some borrowers have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 
 
Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2018,  aggregated by 
length of time individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, is as follows: 

 

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. government obligations -$               -$              4,628,451$      (153,150)$     4,628,451$      (153,150)$     
U.S. state and local authorities 1,323,237      (9,082)           2,692,049        (74,033)                  4,015,286          (83,115)
International bonds 239,188         (10,812)         247,323           (2,641)                       486,511          (13,453)
U.S. corporate bonds 6,655,244      (197,334)                7,736,874        (282,278)        14,392,118        (479,612)
Fixed income mutual funds -                 -                1,146               (67)                                1,146                 (67)
Bond mutual funds -                 -                1,364,019        (131,150)                1,364,019        (131,150)
Equity mutual funds 3,148,221      (471,706)       -                   -                         3,148,221        (471,706)

Total available-for-sale 
securities 11,365,890$  (688,934)$     16,669,862$    (643,319)$     28,035,752$    (1,332,253)$  

12 Months or GreaterLess Than 12 Months Total

 
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and 
more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) 
the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition 
and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the entity to retain its investment in 
the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. As management 
has the ability to hold the securities for the foreseeable future, no declines are deemed to be other-than-
temporary. 

 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

22 
 

 
NOTE 7 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES: 
 

The Company provides property reinsurance to POOL on an excess of loss basis per the following table: 
 

Fiscal Year Insurance layer

7/1/2005-7/1/2007 $  50,000 excess of $150,000
7/1/2007-7/1/2014 $  50,000 excess of $200,000
7/1/2014-7/1/2019 $300,000 excess of $200,000  

 
Also, from inception of the captive until June 30, 2010, Lloyds of London reinsured the Company for 
property losses exceeding $50,000 net loss per incident, but that reinsurance is now directly contracted by 
POOL, not the Company. 
 
The Company’s coverage to Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool’s liability program is as follows: 
 

Retention 1

Fiscal Year Insurance layer
Quota 
share

Insurance layer - 
excluding school 

district
Quota 
share

Insurance layer - 
all members

Quota 
share

Insurance layer - 
school district

7/1/05-7/1/07
$250,000 excess 

of $2,000,000

7/1/07-7/1/11
$250,000 excess 

of $2,000,000 20%
$1,500,000 excess 

of $500,000

7/1/11-7/1/14 20%
$2,500,000 excess 

of $500,000

7/1/14-7/1/16 20%
$2,500,000 excess 

of $500,000 15%
$7,000,000 excess 

of $3,000,000 

7/1/16-7/1/17 30%
$2,500,000 excess 

of $500,000 25%
$7,000,000 excess 

of $3,000,000 

7/1/17-7/1/18 30%
$2,500,000 excess 

of $500,000 25%
$7,000,000 excess 

of $3,000,000 25%

$2,500,000 
excess of 
$500,000

7/1/18-7/1/19 30%
$2,500,000 excess 

of $500,000 25%
$7,000,000 excess 

of $3,000,000 25%

$2,500,000 
excess of 
$500,000

Retention 2

Loss reserve estimates are inherently uncertain because the ultimate amount the Company will pay for 
many of the claims it has incurred as of the balance sheet date will not be known for many years. The 
estimate of loss reserves is intended to equal the difference between the expected ultimate losses of all 
claims that have occurred as of a balance sheet date and amounts already paid. The Company establishes 
loss reserves based on its own analysis of emerging claims and review of the results of actuarial 
projections. The Company's aggregate carried reserve for unpaid losses is the sum of its reserves for each 
accident year and represents its best estimate of outstanding loss reserves. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

23 
 

 
NOTE 7 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 

The amount by which estimated losses in the aggregate differ from those previously estimated for a 
specific time period is known as reserve “development.” Reserve development is unfavorable when losses 
ultimately settle for more than the amount reserved or subsequent estimates indicate a basis for reserve 
increases on open claims, causing the previously estimated loss reserves to be ''deficient.'' Reserve 
development is favorable when estimates of ultimate losses indicate a decrease in established reserves, 
causing the previously estimated loss reserves to be ''redundant.'' Development is reflected in the 
Company's operating results through an adjustment to incurred losses during the period in which it is 
recognized. 

 
The three main components of reserves for unpaid losses are case reserves, incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) loss reserves and reserves for loss adjustment expenses (LAE).  

 
When claims are reported, the Company establishes individual estimates of the ultimate cost of each claim 
(case reserves). These case reserves are continually monitored and revised in response to new information 
and for amounts paid. IBNR is an actuarial estimate of future payments on claims that have occurred but 
have not yet been reported. The Company also estimates and makes a provision for the extent to which the 
case reserves on known claims may develop.  IBNR reserves apply to the entire body of claims arising 
from a specific time period, rather than a specific claim. Most of the Company's IBNR reserves relate to 
estimated future claim payments on recorded open claims. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, estimated unpaid losses have been determined to range from a 
recommended low of $3,951,000 to a recommended high of $4,696,000 with a conservative estimate of 
$5,781,000 based on actuarial estimates; further the actuary has projected expected losses at $2,681,000.   
For the year ended December 31, 2017, estimated unpaid losses have been determined to range from a 
recommended low of $2,495,000 to a recommended high of $3,608,000 with a conservative estimate of 
$4,704,000 based on actuarial estimates; further the actuary has projected expected losses at $1,604,000.  
Management has estimated reserves to be $3,591,000 and $2,495,000 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively.  This estimate is based on funding the Company at the 75% confidence level as 
recommended by the actuary.  Management has elected not to discount the reserves for anticipated 
investment income. 

 
Activity in the reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses account is summarized as follows: 
 

2018 2017

Balance at January 1 2,495,000$        1,909,000$         

Incurred related to:
Current year 1,392,500          957,000              
Prior years 658,558             904,698              

Total incurred 2,051,058          1,861,698           

Net paid 955,058             1,275,698           

Balance at December 31 3,591,000$       2,495,000$        

 
 
As a result of changes in estimates of incurred events in prior years, the provision for losses changed by 
$658,558 and $904,698 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, due to higher 
(lower) than anticipated losses on the development of claims.   

 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

24 
 

NOTE 7 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 

The Company’s reserve estimates are based on loss experience and exposure data and have assumed future 
development of incurred and paid losses can be reasonably predicted on the basis of development of such 
losses in the recent past. 
 
The Company compiles and aggregates its claims data by grouping the claims according to the year in 
which the claim occurred (“accident year”) when analyzing claim payment and emergence patterns and 
trends over time.  It has been assumed that costs associated with liability claims and claim size are 
increasing by 2.0% annually.  For the purposes of defining claims frequency, the number of reported claims 
includes any claim that has case reserves and/or loss and LAE payments associated with them.  The 
Company has assumed that the average frequency of claims stays constant. 

 
The Company analyzed the usefulness of disaggregation of its results and determined the characteristics 
associated with the policies and the related unpaid loss reserves, incurred losses, and payment patterns are 
similar in nature.  The following tables show the Company’s historical incurred and cumulative paid losses 
and LAE development, net of reinsurance, (liability and property combined) as well as IBNR loss reserves 
and the number of reported claims on an aggregated basis as of December 31, 2018 for each of the previous 
10 accident years:  
 

Accident 
Year

2009 (1) 2010 (1) 2011 (1) 2012 (1) 2013 (1) 2014 (1) 2015 (1) 2016 (1) 2017 (1) 2018 IBNR

 Cumulative 
number of 

reported claims 

2009 202.0$     167.9$     121.1$      $     256.0 23.8$        $       13.0  $       76.7  $       65.5  $         4.5 2.4$          -$    0
2010 259.7       460.7               420.0 288.4               274.1 273.7               252.5 196.2       186.2        -      5
2011 276.9               314.5 126.7            131.0 97.8                93.5 92.9        213.9        45.1  4
2012              -   243.9            193.3 73.8                54.6 54.8        51.5          1.5    2
2013 244.6               284.9 291.5               558.7 355.6       531.3        31.3    0
2014         777.2 804.0               435.5 402.7       394.3        75.4    2
2015 551.7               582.8 1,398.2    1,426.3     109.9  5
2016         466.6 818.7       1,307.9     553.8  7
2017 654.8       1,207.6     565.5  7
2018 788.5        663.5  1
Total 6,109.9$   

(in thousands, except claims counts)

Years Ended December 31, 2018

Incurred Losses and LAE, Net of Reinsurance

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

25 
 

NOTE 7 - RESERVE FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (continued): 
 

Accident 
Year 2009 (1) 2010 (1) 2011 (1) 2012 (1) 2013 (1) 2014 (1) 2015 (1) 2016 (1) 2017 (1) 2018

2009 -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            
2010 -             50.0                       50.0 50.0                       50.0 86.2                       86.2 88.6           88.6            
2011 100.0                   100.0 100.0                   140.0 140.0                   140.0 140.0         140.0          
2012 -             -             -             50.0           50.0           50.0           50.0            
2013 -             50.0           50.0           50.0           50.0           50.0            
2014 -             73.7           73.7           417.9         417.9          
2015 -             50.0           245.2         245.2          
2016 50.0           200.0         1,177.3       
2017 600.0          
2018
Total 2,769.00$   
All outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE prior to 2008, net of reinsurance 250.1          
Total outstanding liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance 3,591.0$    

(in thousands)

Cumulative Paid Losses and LAE, Net of Reinsurance

Years Ended December 31,

 
(1) Data presented for these calendar years is considered to be supplementary information, which is unaudited. 

 
The following table presents the average percentage payout of incurred claims by age, net of reinsurance, 
as of December 31, 2018 and is presented as required supplementary information, which is unaudited: 

 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

5.1% 13.3% 11.1% 29.0% 0.0% 3.9% 0.0% 4.0% 0.0% 0.0%
 
The following table represents a reconciliation of claims development to the aggregate carrying amount of 
the liability for unpaid losses and LAE: 

Liabilities for unpaid losses and LAE, net of reinsurance 3,591.0$        
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses -                 
Unallocated LAE -                 

Total liability for unpaid losses and LAE 3,591.0$        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PUBLIC RISK MUTUAL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 
 

26 
 

NOTE 8 - SURPLUS CO NTRIBUTION: 
 

The following is a summary of the surplus contributed to the Company from POOL pursuant to 
authorization by the Executive Committee of POOL:  
 

Years
Surplus POOL 
Contribution

2004 1,000,000$          
2005 -                       
2006 -                       
2007 2,000,000            
2008 3,800,000            
2009 908,416               

2010 4,265,924            
2011 3,276,619            
2012 1,237,581            
2013 1,500,000            
2014 -                       
2015 876,123               
2016 612,600               
2017 10,000,000          
2018 -                       

Total 29,477,263$         
  

NRS 694C.250 requires a pure captive to maintain capital of not less than $200,000, the Company is in 
compliance with this requirement as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

 
NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTIES:  

 
All premiums and surplus contributions are made by POOL and all claims activity is attributable to the 
quota share reinsurance agreement with POOL. 

 
NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 5, 2019, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 



 

27 
 

Casey Neilon, Inc. 
Accountants and Advisors 

 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 694C.210 
 
To the Board of Directors 
    Public Risk Mutual 
 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the financial statements of Public Risk Mutual (PRM), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2018, 
and the related statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 5, 2019. 
 

In planning and performing our audit of the GAAP basis financial statements of Public Risk Mutual (PRM) 
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PRM’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, detected or corrected on a timely basis. 

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and would 

not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Public Risk 

Mutual failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their bylaws, articles of 
incorporation, or business plan, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed 
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Company's noncompliance with the above-
referenced terms, insofar as they relate to accounting matters 
 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, 
others within the organization and state insurance departments to whose jurisdiction PRM is subject and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
Carson City, Nevada 
March 5, 2019 



Pool Renewal Options to Consider 
2019-2020 

March 21, 2019 
 

1. Increase Money & Securities Limits from $500K to $1M =+$82,400 
 

2. Funding at 75% Confidence Level vs 70% Confidence Level 
Property Rates Only 70% $794,000  75% $824,000 Difference $30,000 
Liability Rates Only 70% $538,000 75% $698,000 Difference $160,000 Combined $190K 
 

3. GEM willing to take larger Quota Share 35% $7 xs $3M (Brit’s 40%, PRM’s25%) 
Cost per QS% PRM $3,220, Brit $5,761, GEM $7,069  GEM Not a Good Buy 
 

4. GEM willing to take $2.5M xs $500K Muni Layer 30% QS for $448,247  
Currently: CRL’s 70% PRM 30% 
Cost per QS% at this level:  CRL $8,744  PRM $12,074  GEM Quote: $14,942 Expensive 
 

5. UE 75% Quota Share $2.5M xs $500K cost per share $3,243  PRM Cost $12,507 
Consider letting UE have 100% of this layer  Estimated savings $231,605 less Expense 
 

6. Student Accident Existing Plan cost $196,776: Consider apportionment % 
Catastrophic Accident Quotations:  See schedule 
 

7. Iron Shore Environmental $313,660 for $250,000 Deductible 
Obtaining Quote for $500,000 Deductible 
 

8. Property Quotation:  Pending   
PRM to consider filling in for any “holes” in the quilt 
Increase SIR from $500K to $750K 
 

9. Captive Administrative Cost Allocation 
50/50 to Property and Liability 
2018/2019 No Expense Allocation: Actual was $129,321 2019B $114,800 
 

10. Other 



POOL

FY 2016 Audit FY 2017 Audit FY 2018 Audit

FY 19 

Approved 

Budget

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 1

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 2

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 3 $ Change % Change Notes/Comments

As Current Board Directed Board Directed

REVENUES Unallocated Costs Based on Scorecard Based on Scorecard

Premiums written 13,938,226             13,832,878             14,390,787                         15,434,178       16,977,596            17,565,867               2,131,689      13.8% Derek rate + allocated cost for rates

Phase out of Unallocated Costs

Rental Income 257,937                   258,326                   261,643                               265,104             231,815                  231,815                     (33,289)           -12.6% Reduced Amounts Adjs to NRP, PRI, PARMS

PRM Payment for Risk Management Services 475,000                       

Other Income 181,366                   68,324                      50,174                                  87,800               75,000                     75,000                        (12,800)           -14.6%

Total Revenues 14,377,529             14,159,528             14,702,604                        15,787,082      17,284,411           18,347,682               -                              2,085,600     13.2%

Loss Fund and Insurance Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 3,629,644                4,549,021                6,461,215                            5,455,000         6,268,000               6,268,000                  813,000          14.9% 75% CL Actuarial Number

Excess Insurance Premiums 5,044,561                5,633,992                5,309,446                            5,481,843         6,733,566               6,733,566                  1,251,723      22.8% See Excess Grid below:  Pending Market

Special Insurance programs -                             485,154                               480,000             493,476                  493,476                     13,476            2.8% Student Accident, Pollution Coverage

Agent Commissions 911,271                   905,483                   955,653                               910,000             1,120,521               1,159,347                  210,521          23.1% Commission Rate Remaining the Same

Taxes written 8,248                        2,166                        18,443                                  18,000               18,000                     18,000                        -                   0.0%

Total Loss Fund and Insurance Costs 9,593,724               11,090,662             13,229,911                        12,344,843      14,633,563           14,672,389               -                              2,288,720     63.7%

6.5% 6.5% 6.6% 1,188,432               

Program Expenses

Pooling and loss control fees 505,000                   505,000                   505,000                               505,000             505,000                  505,000                     -                   0.0% Willis 

Third party administrator fees 652,721                   659,418                   710,655                               728,043             730,000                  730,000                     1,957              0.3% ASC

Loss Control awards and grants 185,900                   320,627                   240,525                               500,000             500,000                  400,000                     -                   0%  Opt 2 lowered by $100K Jail Audit Costs

Member education and training 1,067,403                1,310,767                1,177,977                            1,166,950         1,469,200               1,469,200                  302,250          26% See detailed list below

Total Program Expenses 2,411,024               2,795,812               2,634,157                           2,899,993        3,204,200              3,104,200                 -                              304,207         10.5%

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Management Services 475,860                   490,136                   513,174                               563,912             645,000                  525,000                     81,088            14.4% New NRP Contract

Building maintenance and utilities 80,948                      124,219                   93,190                                  95,000               300,000                  300,000                     205,000          215.8% Roof Repairs: 201 S. Roop Street

Depreciation 44,593                      44,564                      49,319                                  50,000               50,000                     50,000                        -                   0.0% Building Depreciation 201 S. Roop Street

Amortization 1,779,165                1,946,893                2,473,560                            2,473,560         2,190,358               2,190,358                  (283,202)        Recalculated  Amortization: Contributions to PRM

Travel 54,711                      48,662                      54,981                                  55,000               55,000                     55,000                        -                   0.0% Board, Staff Travel, Trainings

Casualty Insurance 40,767                      51,553                      31,075                                  32,000               32,000                     32,000                        -                   0.0% Pool Coverage

Operating expenses 232,066                   113,484                   189,723                               137,700             150,000                  150,000                     12,300            8.9%

Legal Expenses 40,931                      85,109                      45,788                                  70,000               80,000                     80,000                        10,000            0                  Coverage Determination, Admin Legal Support

Consultant appraisals 114,850                   87,500                      85,700                                  80,000               80,000                     80,000                        -                   -              AssetWorks Property Appraisals

Environmental consultation 18,972                      23,665                      -                               -                   

Technology services -                             81,967                      12,483                                  13,000               15,000                     15,000                        2,000              Cost Allocation: Pending MR Cost Summary

Total pool administration expenses 2,882,863               3,097,752               3,548,993                           3,570,172        3,597,358              3,477,358                 -                              25,186           0.7%

Decrease in operating Net Position (510,082)                  (2,824,698)              (4,710,457)                          (3,027,926)        (4,150,710)             (2,906,265)                -                               (532,513)        17.6%

Non-operating net investment income 1,209,345                (297,011)                  (51,267)                                500,000             650,000                  650,000                     150,000          Kelly's Book Income @ 97.5% Less Fees

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 699,263                   (3,121,709)              (4,761,724)                         (2,527,926)       (3,500,710)            (2,256,265)                -                              (382,513)       15.1%

Net Position, beginning of year 34,163,124             34,862,387             31,740,678                        26,978,954      24,451,028           24,451,028               24,451,028               

Net Position, end of year 34,862,387             31,740,678             26,978,954                        24,451,028      20,950,318           22,194,763               24,451,028               

Adjustments:

 FY 2020 Budget 

Option 1 

 FY 2020 Budget 

Option 2 

 FY 2020 Budget 

Option 3 

Amortization/Depreciation expenses (Non-cash items) 1,823,758                  1,991,457                  2,522,879                             2,523,560           2,240,358                2,240,358                    -                               

Net Change in Operating NP before Investment Income 1,313,676                  (833,241)                   (2,187,578)                            (504,366)             (1,910,352)               (665,907)                     -                               

Net Change in Operating NP after Investment Income 2,523,021                  (1,130,252)                (2,238,845)                            (4,366)                 (1,260,352)               (15,907)                       -                               

% OF Beginning Net Position Change from Operations 7.4% -3.2% -7.1% 0.0% -5.2% -0.1% 0.0%

Allocated Program Costs 3,211,529                 3,459,427                 3,344,999                             3,369,605          3,285,724                3,165,724                   -                               

Dollar Change 247,898                     (114,428)                               24,606                (83,881)                    (203,881)                     (3,369,605)                  

Percentage Change 7.7% -3.3% 0.7% -2.5% -6.1% -100.0%

Overhead Costs 37.0% 34.0% 28.4% 30.8% 25.3% 24.3% 0.0%

Actuary final 75% CL  2019-20 Total Costs 18,401,287           18,220,113               -                              

Property Liability Under Rated 1,423,691$           654,246$                  -$                            

LF20 2,703,000$                                                                  3,565,000$        6,268,000$             798,822                               

LF 19 2,372,949                                                                    3,096,229$        5,469,178                14.61% 18,713,589               

Reinsurance Estimates 2019-2020 18-19 2019-2020 $ Change % 493,476                     

GEM 227,946$           247,414$           19,468$                               8.10%

Brit (40% Q/S) 223,719$           230,431$           6,712$                                  3.00%

UE 241,298$           243,244$           1,946$                                  30.00%

CRL 453,403$           612,094$           158,691$                             35.00% 2,088,583$            Tot Liab Reins

PRM Liability 483,957$           755,400$           271,443$                             14.00% 552,575                  

PRM Property 689,460$           963,800$           274,340$                             9.00% 783,870$                

Lloyds Property 3,028,101$        3,361,192$        333,091$                             11.00% PENDING

Lloyds Terrorism Property 135,560$           138,949$           3,389$                                  2.50%

Lloyds Terrorism Liability 42,651$            44,000$            1,349$                                  2.50%

BoilerRe 130,999$           137,042$           6,043$                                  0.00%

TOTAL: 5,657,094$        6,733,566$        1,076,472$                         15.99%
Liability total 1,630,323$        2,088,583$        31.0%

Property total 4,026,771$        4,644,983$        69.0%

Special Insurance 18-19 2019-2020 $ Change %

Student Accident 180,882$           196,776$           15,894.00$                         8.8%

Environmental Liability 312,594$           313,660$           1,066.00$                            0.3%

Totals 493,476$           510,436$           

Member Education & Services Pool
PRI Contract 65% 811,200                     

IT Passive Assessments Tony Rucci 225,000                     FY19  Paid from PRM

Target Solutions 50% 37,500                       FY19 Paid from PCM

Torch e-Learning 50% 37,500                       

LD Communications 50% 18,000                       

Jail Inspections $25K Each 100,000                     New Program for FY 20

School Safety, HVAs, Jeff Kaye Training 50,000                       

Aquatics Safety 15,000                       

Legal and Liability Risk Management Institute Training 50,000                       

Loss Control Awards / Recognition 20,000                       

EAP 50% 80,000                       

Other/Discretionary 25,000                       

Total 1,469,200$             

Loss Control Awards / Recognition 500,000                     1,969,200$                        

POOL FY 2016 Audit FY 2017 Audit FY 2018 Audit

FY 19 Approved 

Budget

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 1

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 2

FY 2020 Budget 

Option 3

Total Revenues 14,377,529               14,159,528               14,702,604                           15,787,082        17,284,411              18,347,682                 -                               

Total Loss Fund and Insurance Costs 9,593,724                 11,090,662               13,229,911                           12,344,843        14,633,563              14,672,389                 -                               

Total Program Expenses 2,411,024                 2,795,812                 2,634,157                             2,899,993          3,204,200                3,104,200                   -                               

Total Admin Expenses w/o Amortization/Derek/Building 978,157                     982,076                     932,924                                951,612              1,057,000                937,000                       -                               

  Total Expenses w/o Amortization 12,982,905               14,868,550               16,796,992                           16,196,448        18,894,763              18,713,589                 -                               

Net Increase (Decrease) in Operating Net Position: Adjusted 1,394,624                 (709,022)                   (2,094,388)                            (409,366)            (1,610,352)               (365,907)                     -                               

Expense Allocation

Loss Fund & Insurance Costs 73.9% 74.6% 78.8% 76.2% 77.4% 78.4% #DIV/0!

Program Expenses 18.6% 18.8% 15.7% 17.9% 17.0% 16.6% #DIV/0!

Admin Cost less Amortization & Building Costs 7.5% 6.6% 5.6% 5.9% 5.6% 5.0% #DIV/0!

Building Related Items: FY 18 A FY 19 Est FY 20 Budget

Rental Income 261,643                   265,104                   231,815                               

Building maintenance and utilities 93,190                      95,000                      300,000                               

Depreciation 49,319                      50,000                      50,000                                  

  Total Expenses 142,509                   145,000                   350,000                               

Net Increase (Decrease) 119,134                   120,104                   (118,185)                              

FY 2020 Roof Repair

Notes



2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Notes

Option 1 

As Current

Option 2 

Board 

Priority

REVENUES Audit Audit Estimate Budget Budget

Premiums earned 972,750$        1,086,250$     1,172,000$     1,719,200$     1,719,200$     Derek to provide number

Net Investment Income 640,095          1,137,542       1,200,000       817,045          817,045          Kelly's Est-investment income

Total Revenues 1,612,845       2,223,792       2,372,000       2,536,245       2,536,245       

EXPENSES

Administration expenses

NRP Contract 37,091             40,234             89,393             105,000          75,000            NRP Budget Amount

Actuary 12,710             12,960             15,000             15,000             15,000             Consistent with Prior Year

Audit 16,500             17,000             17,500             18,000             18,000             Increase consistent with Prior Years

Insurance Division Audit/Fees 5,800               5,800               5,800               5,800               5,800               Same as last year

Board and Committee Meetings 1,139               238                  18,500             1,000               1,000               

Technology Fee to NPAIP 5,000               -                   -                   

Total Administration expenses 73,240             76,232             151,193          144,800          114,800          

Program / Member Services

Cyber Assessments/RM Services POOL 266,471          475,000          225,000          225,000          Based on projected number of assessments/Payment To POOL

Payment to POOL for Risk Management Svs -                   250,000          Fixed Dollar Amount Approved by Boards

Legal (Cyber: Gunderson Law) 5,000               5,000               -                   Cyber Legal Support : To be paid by POOL in incurred

Total Program/Member Services -                   266,471          480,000          230,000          475,000          Total Transfer to NPAIP for Member Services

Total Combined Expenses 73,240            342,703          631,193          374,800          589,800          

Total Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses 553,389          1,861,698       1,950,000       2,125,000       2,125,000       Amounts to be determined by Derek:  Compare to Premium Rate

TOTAL Expenses 626,629          2,204,401       2,581,193       2,499,800       2,714,800       

Revenues over total expenses 986,216$        19,391$          (209,193)$       36,445$          (178,555)$       

Surplus Balance: Beginning of Year 26,457,036$   28,129,092$   38,148,484$   37,939,291$   37,939,291$   

Surplus Balance: End of  Year 28,129,092$   38,148,484$   37,939,291$   37,975,736$   37,760,736$   

New Items for PRM Administration expenses

Budgetary Issues for Consideration

1 Payment of Program Services by Captive:  Payment to NPAIP/POOL as Risk Management Services.

2 Transfer a portion of Investment Earnings to Parent to support Operations, Services, Administration.

3 Underwriting: Actuarial Work: Confidence Level, Program cost apportionment into rate making

4 Budgetary impact of investment income:  Use to support Surplus? Operations? Rate Stability?

Expense Allocation 2016 2017 2018 19B  Option 1 19B Option 2

  Administration 73,240$          76,232$          151,193$        144,800$        114,800$        

  Program/Member Services -                   266,471          480,000          230,000          475,000          

  Loss & Loss Adjustment 553,389          1,861,698       1,950,000       2,125,000       2,125,000       

Total Expenses 626,629$        2,204,401$     2,581,193$     2,499,800$     2,714,800$     

Expense Allocation

  Administration 11.7% 3.5% 5.9% 5.8% 4.2%

  Program/Member Services 0.0% 12.1% 18.6% 9.2% 17.5%

  Loss & Loss Adjustment 88.3% 84.5% 75.5% 85.0% 78.3%

PRM Budget



PACT

FY 2016 Audit FY 2017 Audit FY 2018 Audit

FY 19 

Approved 

Budget

FY 2020 Proposed 

Budget

FY 2020 Proposed 

Budget

FY 2020 

Proposed 

Budget $ Change % Change Notes
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
As Current Board Direction Board Direction

REVENUES Unallocated Costs Based on Score Card Other 

Assessments 13,655,893      13,036,187      10,083,799      14,346,881    15,064,225           15,064,225               717,344         5.0% Increase 5% (wages & rate) Derek to finalize

PCM Investment in Risk Mitigation Services 575,000                   -                 Establish Policy on Investment Earnings Tranfers??

Phase out of Unallocated Costs -                        Loss Control Grants / Cardiac Wellness /Target Solutions

Heart Lung Fund 2,682,092        2,113,595        1,104,106        1,784,475       1,104,106             1,604,106                (680,369)       -38.1%   Same as 2018 audit + Cardiac Wellness Cost $500,000

Total Revenues 16,337,985     15,149,782     11,187,905     16,131,356   16,168,331          17,243,331              -                   36,975          0.2%

Loss Fund and Insurance Expense

Claims and Adjustment Expenses 5,843,507        6,257,686        6,431,493        6,579,000       6,825,000             6,825,000                 246,000         3.7% 70% CL / .921 discount factor  approx 80% CL w/discounting

Heart Lung Loss Reserves Expenses 2,784,477        2,305,819        1,450,372        1,784,475       1,104,106             1,104,106                 (680,369)       -38.1% HL Collections less C. Wellnes paid from Member Services

Excess Insurance Premiums 414,360           524,612           526,516           271,442          526,516                526,516                    255,074         94.0% Projected at FLAT Renewal

Reinsurance Premium (PCM) 1,207,000        1,246,065        1,931,416        1,607,000       1,931,416             1,931,416                 324,416         20.2% FY 18A levels (Derek to finalize)

Total Loss Fund and Insurance Expenses 10,249,344     10,334,182     10,339,797     10,241,917   10,387,038          10,387,038              -                   145,121       

Program Expenses

Member Education and services 729,656           578,476           629,804           613,025          1,204,300             1,204,300                591,275         96.5%
 PACT to paid for all expenses directly: PCM reimburse Flat Rate Includes 

$500K for Cardiac Wellness 

Loss control expenses 406,000           406,000           406,000           406,000          406,000                406,000                    -                 0.0% Willis Agreement

Risk Management grants 117,460           657,230           186,174           500,000          500,000                500,000                    -                 0.0% Board Policy: LCC Monitor Amounts

Underwriting and claims processing 745,539           846,380           863,769           846,175          885,363                885,363                    39,188           4.6% ASC, SH, Willis (FY 18A + 2.5%)

Total Program Expenses 1,998,655       2,488,086       2,085,747       2,365,200     2,995,663            2,995,663                -                   630,463       26.7%

Administration Expenses

Management Services 475,860           490,136           513,174           504,840          645,000                675,000                   140,160         27.8% Executive Committee Recommended Rate

Professional Fees 95,181             110,534           110,407           130,855          136,743                136,743                    5,888             4.5% FY 19 B + 4.5%

Administrative and Overhead 470,045           597,859           659,562           481,500          689,242                689,242                    207,742         43.1% FY 18A + 4.5%

Insurance Division Fees 303,645           453,233           484,186           650,000          515,658                515,658                    (134,342)       -20.7% Includes Regulatroy Assessments & DOI Fees

Nevada Insolvency Fund and related expenses 16,754             19,500             19,000             20,000            19,855                  19,855                       (145)               -0.7% FY 19 + 4.5%

Amortization expenses 2,769,879        3,212,594        4,473,428        4,321,752       3,835,096             3,835,096                 (486,656)       -11.3% Re-computed Amortization off Invsmt Schedule

Total Administration Expenses 4,131,364       4,883,856       6,259,757       6,108,947     5,841,595            5,871,595                -                   (267,352)      -4%

Total Loss Fund, Insurance, Program and Administration 16,379,363      17,706,124      18,685,301      18,716,064    19,224,296          19,254,296               -                    508,232        2.7%

Decrease in operating Net Position (41,378)            (2,556,342)       (7,497,396)       (2,584,708)     (3,055,965)            (2,010,965)                -                    (471,257)       18.2%

Non-operating net investment income 2,170,922        (574,816)          82,932             1,001,000       1,369,121             1,369,121                 1,369,121         368,121         Kelly's Book Income @ 97.5% Does not reflect unrealized G/L

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,129,544       (3,131,158)      (7,414,464)      (1,583,708)    (1,686,844)          (641,844)                  1,369,121        (103,136)      6.5%

Net Position, beginning of year 47,790,198     49,919,742     46,788,584     39,374,120   37,790,412          37,790,412              37,790,412      (1,583,708)   

Net Position, end of year 49,919,742     46,788,584     39,374,120     37,790,412   36,103,568          37,148,568              39,159,533      (1,686,844)   

Adjustments:

Amortization expenses (Non-cash item) 2,769,879           3,212,594           4,473,428           4,321,752         3,835,096                3,835,096                     -                        

Net Change in Operating NP before Investment Income 2,728,501          656,252             (3,023,968)        1,737,044        779,131                   1,824,131                    -                       

Net Change in Operating NP after Investment Income 4,899,423           81,436                 (2,941,036)          2,738,044         2,148,252                3,193,252                     1,369,121            

Budgetary Issues to Consider:

1 Heart Lung Cardiac Wellness Cost (Speciality Health) blend cost into HL Contribution/Rate

2 PACT pays all Members Services Cost:  PCM paid PACT flat rate for Risk Management Services as approved by Boards.

3 Underwriting : Actuarial Work: Confidence Level, Rate Making to include all program costs

PACT FY 2016 Audit FY 2017 Audit FY 2018 Audit FY 19 Budget FY20 B Opt 1 FY 20 B Opt 2 FY 20 B Opt 3

  Total Revenues 16,337,985         15,149,782         11,187,905         16,131,356       16,168,331              17,243,331                   -                        

Total Loss Fund and Insurance Expenses 10,249,344         10,334,182         10,339,797         10,241,917       10,387,038              10,387,038                   -                        

Total Program Expenses 1,998,655           2,488,086           2,085,747           2,365,200         2,995,663                2,995,663                     -                        

Total Administration Expenses w/o Amortization 1,361,485           1,671,262           1,786,329           1,787,195         2,006,499                2,036,499                     -                        

  Total Expenses w/o Amortization 13,609,484         14,493,530         14,211,873         14,394,312       15,389,200              15,419,200                   -                        

Net Increase (Decrease) in Operating Net Position 2,728,501           656,252              (3,023,968)          1,737,044         779,131                    1,824,131                     -                        

Expense Allocation

Loss Fund and Insurance Cost 75.3% 71.3% 72.8% 71.2% 67.5% 67.4% #DIV/0!

Program Expenses 14.7% 17.2% 14.7% 16.4% 19.5% 19.4% #DIV/0!

Administation Expenses 10.0% 11.5% 12.6% 12.4% 13.0% 13.2% #DIV/0!

PACT

Member Education & Services PACT Notes
PRI Contract 35% 436,800              

Target Solutions 50% 37,500                 FY19 Paid from PCM

Torch e-Learning 50% 37,500                 

LD Communications 50% 18,000                 

24-7-365 35,000                 PACT Only

MSDS Online 14,500                 PACT Only

Loss Control Awards / Recongition 20,000                 

Cardiac Wellness 500,000              FY19  Paid from Surplus: Included in Heart Lung Assessment

EAP 50% 80,000                 

Other/Discretionary 25,000                 

Total 1,204,300       



2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Notes
Option 1 As 

Current
Option 2 Board 

Priority

REVENUES Audit Audit Estimate Budget Budget

Premiums earned 1,226,532$   1,588,740$   1,607,000$        1,928,400$    1,928,400$    20% Rate Increase: Guesstimate

Net Investment Income 821,284 1,826,118 1,922,000          1,520,536       1,520,536       Kelly's est - investment fees

Total Revenues 2,047,816     3,414,858     3,529,000          3,448,936       3,448,936       

EXPENSES

Administration expenses

NRP Contract 37,089 37,688 89,393                105,000          225,000          NRP Budget Amount

Actuary 7,070 7,207 7,400                  7,400              7,400              Consistent with Prior Year

Audit 16,500 17,000 17,500                18,000            18,000            Increase consistent with Prior Years

Insurance Division Audit/Fees 5,800 5,800 5,800                  5,800              5,800              Same as last year

Technology Agreement 5,000                  -                  -                  Paid through NRP

Meeting and Training 1,082            209 18,387                1,000              1,000              Guestimate

Total Administratiion expenses 67,541 67,904 143,480             137,200          257,200          

Program/Member Services expenses

Target Solutions/RM Payment to PACT 0 0 50,884                75,000            75,000            Contract base of $66,750 + add'al users: Paid by PACT

Risk Management Services Payment to PACT 500,000          Transfer to pay for member services

Associations, Conferences, Training & EducationAssociations, Conferences, Training & Education 10,000                -                  -                  Cost Sharing Meetings/Trainings CRL, GEM, UE, ect

Total Program/ Member Services 0 0 60,884                75,000            575,000          

Total Combined expenses 67,541 67,904 204,364             212,200          832,200          

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses 510,000 123,001 450,000             750,000          750,000          Amounts determined by Derek

Total  Expenses 577,541$      190,905$      654,364$           962,200$        1,582,200$    

Revenues over Expenses 1,470,275$   3,223,953$   2,874,636$        2,486,736$    1,866,736$    

New Items for PCM Administration expenses

Budgetary Issues for Consideration

1 Payment of Program Services by Captive:  Vendor Directly Paid by PACT… Budget Amount Paid by PCM to PACT for Services Provided

2 NRP Management Fee allocation as recommended by Executive Committee

3 Underwriting: Actuarial Work: Confidence Level, Program cost apportionment into rate making

4 PCM Risk Management Services Payment to PACT: Fixed Dollar amount as recommended by Exectuive Committee

Expense Allocation 2016A 2017A 2018 est 2019 B Opt 1 2019 B Opt 2

  Administration 67,541$        67,904$        143,480$           137,200$        257,200$        

  Program/Member Services 0 0 60,884 75,000 575,000

  Loss & Loss Adjustment 510,000 123,001 450,000 750,000 750,000

Total Expenses 577,541$      190,905$      654,364$           962,200$        1,582,200$    

  Administration 11.7% 35.6% 21.9% 14.3% 16.3%

  Program/Member Services 0.0% 0.0% 9.3% 7.8% 36.3%

  Loss & Loss Adjustment 88.3% 64.4% 68.8% 77.9% 47.4%

PCM

Expense Allocation



Revenue

Budget 

7/1/2019-

2020 1,500,000$   

Sources

POOL 645,000$      43.0% 750,000$    

PACT 645,000$      43.0% 750,000$    

PRM 105,000$      7.0%

PCM 105,000$      7.0%

PRI HR 25,000$         

NACO 12,000$         

NLC 12,000$         

POOL/PACT Expense reimbursements 100,000$      

1,649,000$   

Expenses Allocation

Salaries 601,000$      36.4% 4,499$           SUI

SEP 120,200$      7.3% 45,982$         Fed tax

Payroll tax 50,481$         3.1% 50,481$         Payroll Taxes

Other tax; licenses 10,265$         0.6% 8,865$           MBT

Insurance WC,E&O,EPLI,Pkg, bond 40,000$         2.4%

Employee Benefits - Health Insurance 87,000$         5.3%

Travel and other reimbursable expense 100,000$      6.1%

Subscriptions/Dues 10,000$         0.6%

Bank charges 2,000$           0.1%

IT management 48,991$         3.0%

all other 25,000$         1.5%

Rent 74,803$         4.5%

1,169,739$   

Net Income 479,261$      29.1%

PARMS Contract 300,000$      18.2%

Net Income after contract 179,261$      10.9%

NPAIP 35.0% 525,000$      NPAIP 35.0% 525,000$       

PACT 35.0% 525,000$      PACT 45.0% 675,000$       

PRM 15.0% 225,000$      PRM 5.0% 75,000$         

PCM 15.0% 225,000$      PCM 15.0% 225,000$       

Totals 100.0% 1,500,000$   Totals 100.0% 1,500,000$   

750,000$    750,000$    600,000$    900,000$     

Note: 
Apportionment of NRP Grant to NPAIP, PACT, PRM, PCM is shown 3 different ways.  Apportionment determined by Boards.

Travel Expenses are pass throughs as revenue reimbursements from POOL/PACT.

IT Management are IT charges paid to POOL as a cost reimbursement on proportionate share to various entities. 

NRP Contract Cost Allocations Examples

Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc

Proposed Budget FY 19/20

Allocation Used in Budget



Description Vendor

Estimated 

Amount Notes from Board Meeting Phase In Period Priority

Unallocated Costs Move to Allocated/By Whom # Years

PRM IT Passive Assessments: Rucci 150,000$               Finish PA's: Next Phase 50 allocated/50 unallocated: Evaluate every 2 years  

PRM Cyber Legal: Gunderson Law 5,000$                    Move into NPAIP Budget: Allocated cost FY 19-20 Budget

PCM Target Solutions 75,000$                 Move to PACT.  Allocated cost to all members. FY 19-20 Budget

NPAIP Student Accident 200,000$               Evaluate C/B of Program:  Pro-forma Allocation to School Districts

NPAIP Pollution Coverage 315,000$               Consider Lower Limits, Coverage Placement in NPAIP, Menu charge to members

NPAIP Loss Control Grants / Training 500,000$               Unallocated: Loss Control Committee monitor/suspend grants if financial issue.

PACT Cardiac Wellness 350,000$               Allocate the Cost within the heart/lung rate.  FY 19-20 Budget

PACT Loss Control Grants / Training 500,000$               Unallocated: Loss Control Committee monitor/suspend grants if financial issue.

Totals 2,095,000$      865,000$      

Member Education & Services: ALLOCATED Pool Notes from Board Meeting Priority
PRI Contract 65% 811,200                     Successful Flagship Program: No Changes recommended

IT Passive Assessments Tony Rucci 150,000                     See comments above.  Paid by POOL. 

Cyber Legal: Gunderson Law 5,000                          See comments above.  Paid by POOL.  Allocated

Torch e-Learning 50% 37,500                       Successful program. Continue to develop on-line learning program

LD Communications 50% 18,000                       Administration/Public/Member Outreach: Continue

Jail Inspections $25K Each 100,000                     New Program for FY 2020: Fund from POOL. Consider Contract with PRM for LC Services

School Safety, HVAs, Jeff Kaye Training 100% 50,000                       Contract Allocated cost for basis services.  Entities pay for specific entity work by JK

Aquatics Safety 100% 15,000                       Successful Program.  Continue

Legal and Liability Risk Management Institute Training 50,000                       Law Enforcement Contract.  Successful Program. Continue

Loss Control Awards / Recognition 50% 10,000                       Continue Successful Program 

EAP 50% 80,000                       Evaluate C/B of Program.  Can we get services al carte? Member contract direct Costco Pricing

Other/Discretionary 50% 25,000                       Loss Control Committee/POOL PACT Staff Recommendations

Total NPAIP 1,351,700$           

PRI Contract 35% 436,800$               Successful Flagship Program: No Changes recommended

Target Solutions 100% 75,000                       PACT to pay.  Continue Program.  Allocate Cost 

Torch e-Learning 50% 37,500$                 Successful program. Continue to develop on-line learning program

LD Communications 50% 18,000$                 Administration/Public/Member Outreach: Continue

24-7-365 100% 35,000$                 Continue Program. Evaluate by June 2020 to determine effectiveness.

MSDS Online 100% 14,500$                 Successful Program.  Continue

Loss Control Awards / Recognition 50% 10,000$                 Continue Successful Program 

EAP 50% 80,000$                 Evaluate C/B of Program.  Can we get services al carte? Member contract direct Costco Pricing

Other/Discretionary 50% 25,000$                 Loss Control Committee/POOL PACT Staff Recommendations

Total PACT 731,800$              2,083,500$                                                                                                                                         Grand Total Member Services

Risk Management Grants Adjust Amount? Priority
Risk Management Grants: NPAIP 500,000                     Unallocated: Loss Control Committee monitor/suspend grants if financial issue.

Risk Management Grants: POOL 500,000                     Encourage grants to address items within IT or HVA Assessments + Other LC Efforts

Total Risk Management Grants 1,000,000        

Investment Book Income/Policy Allocation % Allocation Notes from Board Meeting Priority
Payment for Unallocated Costs / Programs Fixed $ Not % Program Cost paid by NPAIP/PACT not Captive.  Captive retains book income.

Building up Reserves/Surplus Captive consider fixed $ amount for Loss Prevention to reduce Captive losses. Set annually

Rate Stabilization Evaluate needed rates, loss reserves, and finanical position before setting amount for LC.

Other Use: 

Total Percentage Allocations All-In Costs 3,948,500$  

NPAIP/PACT/PRM/PCM

Budget Discussions 2019/2020

Scorecard Ranking

Executive Committee Meeting January 15, 2019

















































































































Name of Entity: White Pine TV District #`

Related Entities to be Included: none

Insurance Agent: Alan Reed of Warren Reed Insurance

Experience Modification Factor: 1.00

Estimated Annual Premium: 3,500$       

Date: 3/22/2019

Considered Required

Cooperative Attitude Toward Loss Control X yes

Exposures Acceptable X TV District; 5 board plus 2 employees

Policies/Procedures Exist For Critical Operations X Yes

Loss Experience Acceptable X No losses

Well-Maintained Facilities and Equipment X Yes

Sound Financial Condition X Yes

Quality of Management/Stability of Board X Beverly Cornutt former WP Co Treasurerr

Employee Procedures Manual X No; need help

Training Programs for Employees X Yes

Urban vs. Rural Location X Rural

Established Risk Management and Safety Program X informal

Unusual Operations X No

Attachment:     None

    Policy History Recap (Premium and Losses) Travelers

    Other: 

(J:\Excel\PACT\Prospective Members Underwriting Review Form.xls)

 PUBLIC AGENCY COMPENSATION TRUST

PROSPECTIVE MEMBERS UNDERWRITING REVIEW

Criteria Comments



Name of Entity: White Pinie Television District #1

Related Entities to be Included: None

Insurance Agent: Alan Reed of Warren Reed Insurance

Estimated Annual Premium: $15,000 est

Date: 3/22/19

Considered Required

Cooperative Attitude Toward Loss Control X yes

Exposures Acceptable X yes www,whitepinetv.com

Policies/Procedures Exist For Critical Operations X yes

Loss Experience Acceptable X no losses

Well-Maintained Facilities and Equipment X yes

Sound Financial Condition X yes

Quality of Management/Stability of Board X Beverly Cornutt former Treasurer WP County

Employee Procedures Manual X no, need help; 3 employees

Training Programs for Employees X yes

Urban vs. Rural Location X rural

Established Risk Management and Safety Program X informal

Unusual Operations X no

Deductible Size X 500$                      

Attachment:     None
EO- none

    Policy History Recap (Premium and Losses) GL Scottsdale
AL Progressive

    Other: Property - None

(J:\Excel\POOL\Prospective Members Underwriting Review Form.xls)

Criteria Comments

NEVADA PUBLIC AGENCY INSURANCE POOL

PROSPECTIVE MEMBERS UNDERWRITING REVIEW



Beverly Cornutt former Treasurer WP County



POOL Executive Committee

Re-election 
Term Entity Officers

Counties/Cities 
With Less Than 

35,000 
Population

Counties/Cities 
With 35,000 or 

More Population
School 
Districts

Special 
Districts

(Total 2) (Total 2) (Total 2) (Total 1)
Cash Minor 2017-2019 Elko County Chair X
Dan Corona 2017-2019 West Wendover X
Josh Foli 2017-2019 Lyon County Vice Chair X
Dan Murphy appointed 10/9/18 2017-2019 Pershing Co. School District X

Bev Conley 2018-2020 Eureka County X
Ann Cyr 2018-2020 Carson City School District X
Gerry Eick 2018-2020 Incline Village GID Fiscal Officer X

Voting Special Districts/Towns:
Bob Reed Gardnerville Ranchos GID X
Susan Severt or Garth Elliott Sun Valley GID X
Chris Mulkerns Town of Tonopah X
Gerry Eick or Steve Pinkerton Incline Village GID X
Ron Brugada Southern Nevada Health District X
Scott Baker Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District X



PACT Executive Committee

Term Entity Officers

Counties/Cities 
With Less Than 

35,000 Population

Counties/Cities 
With 35,000 or 

More Population
School 
Districts

Special 
Districts Hospitals

(Total 2) (Total 2) (Total 1) (Total 1) (Total 1)

Mike Giles 2017-2019 City of Lovelock X
Josh Foli 2017-2019 Lyon County Fiscal Officer X
Cash Minor 2017-2019 Elko County Vice Chair X
Chris Mulkerns 2017-2019 Town of Tonopah X

Cindy Hixenbaugh 2018-2020 Pershing General Hospital X
Elizabeth Francis 2018-2020 White Pine County X
Paul Johnson 2018-2020 White Pine Co. School District Chair X

Voting Special Districts/Towns:
Tod Carlini East Fork Fire Protection District X
Gerry Eick Incline Village GID X
Chris Mulkerns Town of Tonopah X
Amy Hagan Southern Nevada Health District X
Scott Baker Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District X

Voting Hospitals:

Linda Lauritzen or Nancy Lockridge Battle Mountain General Hospital X
Jason K. Bleak or Missie Rowe Grover C Dils Hospital X
Sandi Lehman or Rose Marie Green   Humboldt General Hospital X
Jonalee Roberts or Greg Schumann Mt Grant General Hospital X
Patti Bianchi or Cindy Hixenbaugh Pershing General Hospital X



 

 
 

Notice of Meetings and Agendas for the Joint Meeting of 
the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committees of 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool and 
the Board of Trustees of 

Public Agency Compensation Trust 
Place:  Whitney Peak Hotel 

Reno, Nevada 
 

Date:  April 16, 2019 Time:  1:00 p.m. 
 

Date:  April 17, 2019 Time:  8:00 a.m. 
 

JOINT BOARDS and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES’ AGENDA  
 

April 16, 2019 
 

Notices: 
1. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; 
2. Two or more items on the agenda may be combined for consideration 
3. Any item on the agenda may be removed or discussion may be delayed at any time 
4. The general Public Comment periods are limited to those items not listed on the agenda.  Public 
Comment periods are devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and may include 
discussion of those comments; however, no action make be taken upon a matter raised under Public 
Comments until the matter itself has been included specifically on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken.  
5. At the discretion of the Chair of the meeting, public comments on specific agenda items may be 
allowed, but must be limited to the specific agenda item. 
 
1. Introductions and Roll 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. Risk Management, Loss Control, Wellness:  Watch This!!!  Marshall/Willis/SH 30mins 
 
4.   Human Resources: From the Trenches - They Did What??  Stacy 20mins 
 
5. Claims Management:  This Is Us?!?  Donna  20mins 
 
6. Cyber Report: The Spy Among Us? – Mike R  20 mins 
 
Break come back at 3  
 
7. The Reinsurance Quilt: It’s Puzzling – Can You Solve It? Mary/Mike R 20 mins 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 
Public Agency Compensation Trust 
201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, NV 89701-4779 
Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665 
Telephone  (775) 885-7475 
Facsimile  (775) 883-7398  



 

 
8. Convenient Learning-Saving Money and Time!  Mike VH   20mins 
 
9.   Agent Best Practices: What? They Didn’t Tell Me About That!  Stephen  20 mins 
 
10. For Possible Action:  Consent Agenda: Approve as a Whole Unless Moved From Consent 

Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes of Board: 

Joint Board Meeting April 19, 2018 – April 20, 2018 
b. Acceptance of Minutes of Committee Meetings 

Joint Executive Committee Meeting of August 20, 2018 
Joint Executive Committee Meeting of November 5, 2018 
Joint Executive Committee Meeting of February 19, 2019  
Audit Committee Meeting of October 30, 2018 
Human Resources Oversight Committee Meeting of September 28, 2018 
Human Resources Oversight Committee Meeting of December 7, 2018 
Human Resources Oversight Committee Meeting of March 1, 2019 

              Loss Control Committee Meeting of September 18, 2018 
  Loss Control Committee Meeting of December 17, 2018 
  Loss Control Committee Meeting of March 1, 2019 
   
             c. Acceptance of Reports 

o Executive Director 
o Public Risk Mutual 
o Public Compensation Mutual  
o HR Oversight Committee  
o PRI Financial Audit  
o EAP Program   
o Peer Counseling Program   
o Loss Control Committee  
o Alternative Service Concepts Claims 
o SpecialtyHealth Cardiac Wellness Program 
o 24/7/365 Workers Compensation Injury Call Service 

 
11. Public Comment 
 
12. For Possible Action:  Recess Until April 17, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. 
 
 
5:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. Board Attitude Assessment  
 
6:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.  Dinner and Entertainment: 2 Blokes & A Squeeze Box  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

JOINT BOARDS and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES’ AGENDA  
 

April 17, 2019 
 

Notices: 
1. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; 
2. Two or more items on the agenda may be combined for consideration 
3. Any item on the agenda may be removed or discussion may be delayed at any time 
4. The general Public Comment periods are limited to those items not listed on the agenda.  Public 
Comment periods are devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and may include 
discussion of those comments; however, no action make be taken upon a matter raised under Public 
Comments until the matter itself has been included specifically on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken.  
5. At the discretion of the Chair of the meeting, public comments on specific agenda items may be 
allowed, but must be limited to the specific agenda item. 
 
1. Reconvene Meeting of April 16th and Roll 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Investment Reports and Action on Recommendations: 
 a. NEAM Management Investment Manager  
 b. Strategic Asset Alliance Investment Advisor   
 
4.  For Possible Action: Review and Approval of Investment Guidelines 
 a. PACT Investment Guidelines 
 b. POOL Investment Guidelines 
 
5.  Benchmarking ratio review 
 
6.  For Possible Action: POOL/PACT Board Retreat Report  
 
7. Public Comment 
 
8. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 
 
This Agenda was posted at the following locations and on the State’s Website notice.nv.gov: 
 
 N.P.A.I.P. / P.A.C.T.     Carson City Courthouse 
 201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102    885 E. Musser Street 
 Carson City, NV     89701    Carson City, NV     89701 
 

Eureka County Courthouse Churchill County Administration  
 10 S. Main Street     155 North Taylor Street 
 Eureka, NV    89316     Fallon, NV     89406 



 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool or Public Agency 
Compensation Trust in writing at 201 S.  Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson City, NV  89701, or by 
calling (775) 885-7475 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 



 

 
 

Notice of Meetings and Agendas for the Meeting of 
the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee of 

Public Agency Compensation Trust  
Place:  Atlantis, Reno, Nevada  

Time:  9:00 a.m. or 
Upon adjournment of Joint Board Meeting 

Date:  April 17, 2019 
 

AGENDA 
  

April 17, 2019 
 

Notices: 
1. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; 
2. Two or more items on the agenda may be combined for consideration 
3. Any item on the agenda may be removed or discussion may be delayed at any time 
4. The general Public Comment periods are limited to those items not listed on the agenda.  Public 
Comment periods are devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and may include 
discussion of those comments; however, no action make be taken upon a matter raised under Public 
Comments until the matter itself has been included specifically on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken.  
5. At the discretion of the Chair of the meeting, public comments on specific agenda items may be 
allowed, but must be limited to the specific agenda item. 
 
 
1. Introductions and Roll 
 
2.   Public Comment 
 
3. For Possible Action:  Consent Agenda:  Approve as a Whole Unless Moved From Consent 

Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes of Board Meetings: 

1) Board Meeting April 20, 2018 
b. Acceptance of Interim Financial Statements 

 
4. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Audit for June 30, 2018  Alan 
 
5. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Reports  

a. Large Loss Report Donna/Mike L. 
b. Actuarial Update Wayne 
c. Legislative Report 

 
6. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of PACT Retention Options and Renewal Reinsurance 

Proposals and Options  Mary/Mike R. 
 
7. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Budget for 2019-2020  Alan 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 
Public Agency Compensation Trust 
201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, NV 89701-4779 
Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665 
Telephone   (775) 885-7475 
Facsimile  (775) 883-7398  



 

 
8. For Possible Action:  Action regarding these topics as required by Nevada Administrative 

Code:  
a. Review of financial condition of each member and prompt notification to the 

Members of any Member determined to be operating in a hazardous financial 
condition       

                              b. Review of the loss experience of each Member of the association - Claims Experience 
Report Summary 

c. Review for removal of Members with excessive loss experience or Members 
determined by the Board to be operating in a hazardous condition 

 
9. For Possible Action:  Election of Executive Committee for Two Year Terms 2019-2021 

 a. Two Representatives from Counties and/or Cities with 35,000 or more Population 
 b. One Representative from Counties and/or Cities with less than 35,000 Population 
  c. One Representative of School Districts 
  d. One Representative of Special Districts/Towns 
 

10. For Possible Action:  Election of Chair and Vice Chair 
 
11. Public Comment 
 
12. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 
   
This Agenda was posted at the following locations and on the State Website notice.nv.gov: 
 
 N.P.A.I.P. / P.A.C.T.     Carson City Courthouse 
 201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102    885 E. Musser Street 
 Carson City, NV     89701    Carson City, NV     89701 
 

Eureka County Courthouse    Churchill County Administration 
 10 S. Main Street     155 North Taylor Street 
 Eureka, NV    89316     Fallon, NV     89406 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool or Public Agency 
Compensation Trust in writing at 201 S.  Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson City, NV  89701, or by 
calling (775) 885-7475 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 



 

 
 

Notice of Meetings and Agendas for the Meeting of 
the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee of 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool  
Place:  Atlantis, Reno, Nevada 

Time:  10:30 a.m. or 
Upon adjournment of PACT Board Meeting 

Date:  April 17, 2019 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
April 17, 2019 

Notices: 
1. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; 
2. Two or more items on the agenda may be combined for consideration 
3. Any item on the agenda may be removed or discussion may be delayed at any time 
4. The general Public Comment periods are limited to those items not listed on the agenda.  Public 
Comment periods are devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and may include 
discussion of those comments; however, no action make be taken upon a matter raised under Public 
Comments until the matter itself has been included specifically on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken.  
5. At the discretion of the Chair of the meeting, public comments on specific agenda items may be 
allowed, but must be limited to the specific agenda item. 
 
 
1. Introductions and Roll 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. For Possible Action:  Consent Agenda:  Approve as a Whole Unless Moved From Consent 

Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes of Board and Committee Meetings: 

o Board Meeting April 20, 2018 
b. Acceptance of Interim Financial Statements 

 
4. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Audit for June 30, 2018  Alan 
 
5. For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Reports 
 a. Large Loss Report Donna 
 b. Actuarial Update  Wayne 
 c. Legislative Report  Wayne 
  
6.  For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Renewal Reinsurance and Insurance Proposals and Options 
Mary/Mike R 
   
7.  For Possible Action:  Acceptance of Budget for 2019-2020  Alan 

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool 
Public Agency Compensation Trust 
201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, NV 89701-4779 
Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665 
Telephone   (775) 885-7475 
Facsimile  (775) 883-7398  



 

 
8. For Possible Action:  Action regarding these topics:  

a. Review of financial condition of each member and prompt notification to the Members of 
any Member determined to be operating in a hazardous financial condition       
b. Review of the loss experience of each Member of the association - Claims Experience 
Report Summary 
c. Review for removal of Members with excessive loss experience or Members determined 
by the Board to be operating in a hazardous condition 

 
9.  For Possible Action: Approval of Changes to POOL Form 
 
10. For Possible Action:   Election of Executive Committee for Two Year Terms from 2019-2021 

 a. Two Representatives from Counties and/or Cities with 35,000 or more Population 
 b. One Representative from Counties and/or Cities with less than 35,000 Population 
  c. One Representative of School Districts 
  

11. For Possible Action:   Election of Chair and Vice Chair 
 
12. Public Comment 
 
13. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 
 
This Agenda was posted at the following locations and on the State’s Website notice.nv.gov: 
 
 N.P.A.I.P. / P.A.C.T.     Carson City Courthouse 
 201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102    885 E. Musser Street 
 Carson City, NV     89701    Carson City, NV     89701 
 

Eureka County Courthouse Churchill County Administration 
 10 S. Main Street     155 North Taylor Street 
 Eureka, NV    89316     Fallon, NV     89406 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool or Public Agency 
Compensation Trust in writing at 201 S.  Roop Street, Suite 102, Carson City, NV  89701, or by 
calling (775) 885-7475 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 
 


	Joint Executive Comm Agenda 4-2-2019
	3 Joint Executive Comm Minutes 2-19-2019 DRAFT
	4 NRP POOLPACT Grant Exhibit A Scope of Services 2019-2024 Final
	4 NRP POOLPACT Grant Provisions, Terms and Conditions Final
	5 2018 PCM Audit Presentation
	PCM Captive Audit Overview
	Key sections of the audit report
	Key players
	������Public Compensation Mutual
	������Public Compensation Mutual
	������Public Compensation Mutual
	Public Compensation Mutual��Key Financial �Benchmarks
	Questions & Answers

	5 2018 PRM Audit Presentation
	PRM Captive Audit Overview
	Key sections of the audit report
	Key players
	Public Risk Mutual
	Public Risk Mutual
	Public Risk Mutual��Key Financial �Figures
	Public Risk Mutual��Key Financial �Benchmarks
	Questions & Answers

	5 Public Compensation Mutual Audited Financial Statements 12312018
	Public Compensation Mutual Audited Financial Statements 12312018.pdf
	Public Compensation Mutual Audited Financial Statements 12312018 - Page 10 Replacement.pdf

	5 Public Risk Mutual Audited Financial Statements 12312018
	6 Pool Renewal Options to Consider 3 21 2019
	7 COMBINED BOARD Budget Worksheets 3 25 2019
	8 White Pine TV Dist #1 Application
	8 White Pine TV Dist #1 PACT Prospective Members Underwriting Review Form
	8 White Pine TV District #1 POOL Prospective Members Underwriting Review Form
	9 Executive Committees Election Schedule
	9 Joint Board Agenda 4-16-17-2019 DRAFT
	JOINT BOARDS and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES’ AGENDA
	JOINT BOARDS and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES’ AGENDA
	NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES


	9 PACT Board Agenda 4-17-2019 DRAFT
	AGENDA
	NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES


	9 POOL Board Agenda 4-17-2019 DRAFT
	AGENDA
	NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES





